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Annual General Meeting _: Monday, 30‘6September, 2024 

Time : 1.00 P.M. 
Venue: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) inter-alia vide its latest circular being 

09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) 

vide its latest Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167dated October 7, 

2023has permitted the holding of the annual general meeting through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) or through other audio-visual means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the 

Members at a common venue & thus venue requirements are not applicable for this AGM.
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NOTICE 
39th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY NINTH(39%) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE 

MEMBERS OF NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED (CIN:L51909DL1984PLC019485) 

WILL BE HELD ONMONDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2024AT 1.00 P.M.(IST)THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING 

/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (VC/OAVM)TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS(ES): 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Utkarsh Jain,Director(DIN: 05271884), who retires by rotation and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

By Order of the Board 

For North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 Sd/- 
(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695 

NOTES: 

=
 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) inter-alia vide its General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated 

April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, followed by General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 
5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2023 dated 25th 
September, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI”) vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 
followed by Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 (collectively referred to as “SEBI 
Circulars”) has permitted the holding of the annual general meeting through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) or through other audio-visual means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members 
at a common venue till September 30, 2024. 

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the 39th 
Annual General Meeting (“Meeting” or “AGM”) of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on 
Monday , September 30, 2024 at1.00P.M(IST). The proceedings of the AGM deemed to be conducted 
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, Azad Market, Delhi- 
110006. 

Brief resume of the Director seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under Regulation 36 of 
SEB] (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015} is annexed hereto and forms part of Notice. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company. In terms of MCA Circulars, since physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, 
there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies 
by the Members under Section 105 of the Act, will not be available for the AGM and, hence, the Proxy 

Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. 
Ashish Kumar Friends, M/s A.K. Friends & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, New Delhi (FCS
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5129 & CP No.-4056) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair 
and transparent manner. 

Corporate/Institutional members (ie. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send 
scanned copy of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc. authorizing its 
representative to attend 39AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e- 
voting. The said Resolution/Authorization be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered 
email address to akfriends38@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Members attending the 39AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

Members can login and join the 39™AGM 30 minutes prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM and 
the window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time to start 
the AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 
members, on first-come-first-served basis. However, the participation of large members (members 
holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial 
personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors can attend the 39%AGM without restriction of first- 
come-first served basis. Instructions and other information for members for attending the 
39 AGM through VC/OAVM are given in this Notice. 

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the aforesaid 
MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e- 
voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the 39tAGM will be provided by NSDL. 

For ease of conduct, members who would like to ask questions/express their views on the items of the 
business to be transacted at the meeting can send in their questions/ comments in advance 
mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at 

cs@neccgroup.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.Those Members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during 
the 39%AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM. 

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, Register of contracts and arrangements in which 
Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other 
documents referred to in the Notice, will be available for inspection through electronic mode, without 
any fee, by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice, up to the date of AGM ie, 
September 30, 2024. Members desiring for inspection of said documents are requested to send an e- 
mail to the Company at cs@neccgroup.com. 

In accordance with SEB] LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) 
Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 30/11/2018 any request 
for physical transfer of shares shall not be processed w.ef. April 01,2019 

Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 
dated 25January 2022, the following requests received by the Company in physical form will be 
processed and the shares will be issued in dematerialization form only:-
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i. Issue of duplicate share certificate 
ii. Claim from unclaimed suspense account 
iii. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate 
iv. Endorsement 
v. Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate 
vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios 
vii. Transmission 

viii. Transposition 

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is 
hosted on the website of MAS Services Ltd, Registrar and share transfer agent (RTA) The 
aforementioned form shall be furnished in hard copy form. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the 
earliest. 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC 

details (i.e., postal address with pin code, e-mail address, mobile number, bank account 

details) and nomination details by holders of securities. Shareholders are requested to update 

the said details against folio/ demat account. 

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the 39t*AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2023- 24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 

Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members 

may note that the Notice calling 39%AGM and Annual Report 2023-24 are available on the 

website of the Company at www.neccgroup.com and on the website of the Stock Exchanges 

i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.comand National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.nseindia.comand on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency for providing voting through electronic means 

and AGM through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-link on the above will also be provided in 

advertisement being published in Financial Express (English all edition) and Jansatta (Hindi 

edition). 

. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies 

can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case 

of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to 

eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 

to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company Secretary or MAS Services 

Limited, Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) (Tel. No. 011 

26387281/82/83) for assistance in this regard. 

Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the 

same with their Depository Participants (“DP”) in case the shares are held by them in 

electronic form and with the Company/RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical 

form. 

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 

e-mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 

nominations, power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in electronic 

form and to the Company/RTA ifthe shares are held by them in physical form. 

For receiving all future correspondence (including Annual Report) from the Company 

electronically-
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In case you have not registered your email ID with the Company/ Depository, please follow below 
instructions to register your email ID for obtaining Annual Report for FY 2023-2024 and login details 
for e-voting. 

Physical Holding 

Send a signed request letter to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, MAS Services Limited at 
investor@masserv.com providing Folio Number, Name of the Shareholder, scanned copy of the Share 
Certificate (Front and Back), PAN(Self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR ( Self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) with subject line (Register E-mail ID Folio No (Mention Folio No) of 
North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited. 

Demat Holding 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address as per the process 
advised by DP. 

In case a person has become a member of the Company after dispatch of the 39""AGM Notice, but on or 
before the cut-off date for e-voting ie. Monday, September 23, 2024, such person may obtain the 
User ID and Password from RTA by e-mail request on investor@masserv.com 

With a view to helping us serve the members better, members who hold shares in identical names and 
in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Company to 
consolidate their holdings in one folio. 

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders of 
the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him/them shall vest in the 
event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the requisite 
nomination form. 

In terms of SEBI Circular dated 09/12/2020, the depository shall send SMS/email alerts regarding the 
details of the upcoming 39ttAGM to the demat holders atleast 2 days prior to the date of 
commencement of e-voting. Hence members are requested to update the mobile no./email ID with 
their respective depository participants. 

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the electronic voting during the 39"AGM, assess the votes 
cast at the meeting through electronic voting system, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote 
e-voting and make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same to the Chairman of the 
Meeting. 

The results of the voting indicating the number of votes cast in favour or against each of the 
Resolution(s), invalid votes and whether the Resolution(s) have been carried out or not, together with 
the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be uploaded on the website of the Company (www.neccgroup.com) and 
on NSDL website (www.evoting.nsdl.com) and will also be submitted to BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited within the prescribed time. Further, the resolution(s), if passed by 
requisite majority, shall be deemed to be passed on the date of 39thAGM. 

SEBI vide Circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_JAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31st July, 2023 (updated 
as on 4thAugust 2023) has specified that a shareholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance with 
the listed entity by lodging a complaint directly with the concerned listed entity and if the grievance is 
not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines, escalate 
the same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with theprocess laid out therein. 
Only after exhausting all available options for resolutionof the grievance, if the shareholder is not 
satisfied withthe outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolutionthrough the Online Dispute 
Resolution (“ODR”) Portal.
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Shareholders are requested to take note ofthe same. 

25. Instructions for e-voting and joining the 39ttAGM are as follows: 

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for the purpose of this section of 
the Notice) and regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company is providing facility of remote e- 
voting to exercise votes on the items of business given in the Notice 39ttAnnual General Meeting (AGM) 
through electronic voting system, to members holding shares as on Monday , September 23, 2024(end of 
day), being the cut-off date fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the 
remote e-voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at the e-AGM. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE 

ASUNDER:- 

The remote e-voting period begins on FridaySeptember 27, 2024 (9.00 A.M.) to Sunday, September 
29, 2024 (5.00 P.M.). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday , September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Monday , September 23, 2024 

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual _ meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of | Login Method 
shareholders 

Individual 1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please 
Shareholders visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
holding — securities typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/either 
in demat mode on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
with NSDL. of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on options available against company name or e- 
Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be re-directed 
to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register_is available at_https://eservices.nsdl.com, Select 
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“Register Online for IDeAS’ Portal or click 
athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digitdemat account number held with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

Click on options available against company name or e-Voting 
service provider - NSDL and you will be redirected to e- 
Voting website of NSDLfor casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

Individual 1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
Shareholders login through their user id and password. Option will be made 
holding — securities available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
in demat mode authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
with CDSL arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 
2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 

to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e- 
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https: //web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra 
tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. froma link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
Shareholders through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
(holding securities | e-Voting facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
in demat mode) | Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
login through their | NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
depository you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against 
participants company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
securities in demat mode with| NSDL helpdesk by sending a _ request’ at 
NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 

and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
securities in demat mode with|CDSL helpdesk by sending a _ request’ at 
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdlcom/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is: 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in| 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
demat account with NSDL. Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN3O0*** 1244444", 

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12*eeeeeeeeete* then your user ID is 
De eo eek cet 

c) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
Physical Form. registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
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the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) Howto retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment ie. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com., 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdlco.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. 

2. 

7. 

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options ie. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
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attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to akfriends38@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 orsenda 
request to Amit Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice: 

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
investor@masserv.com or cs@neccgroup.com . 

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) to investor@masserv.com or cs@neccgroup.com. If you are an 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to 
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 

vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

1. 

4. 

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
EGM/AGM. 

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for 
Remote e-voting. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” 
placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to 
click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will 
be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. 
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or 
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e- 
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at cs@neccgroup.com . The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

General Instructions 

lil. 

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 
owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of remote e-voting. 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Friends, M/s A.K. Friends & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, New 
Delhi (FCS 5129 & CP No.-4056), has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing 
facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process 
in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting 

is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members who are 

present VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting 
facility. 

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website 
of the Company www.neccgroup.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the 
declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and 
communicated to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited within the 
prescribed time. 

11
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Place: Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

By Order of the Board of Director of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Sd/ 

(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), 2015 

S.No. | Particulars Mr. Utkarsh Jain 

1. DIN 05271884 
2. Age 30 

3. Qualification BSc (Hons) in Management Studies from the 
University of Nottingham, United Kingdom, IBS 
Hyderabad. 

4. Background details/Nature of | He has joined the Management of the Company as 
Expertise a Director to share hands with his father in the 

legacy of the family business. Like his father he is 
giving new shape to the business with his 
innovative and fresh ideas to enhance business. He 

is involved in getting major assignments for the 
Company. 

5. Date of first appointment 16/12/2013 
on the Board 

6. Past Remuneration Rs.36,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Six Lakhs only) per 
annum 

7. Recognition or Awards Not applicable 

8. Job Profile and his suitability He is responsible to look after the overall 

operations and Marketing of the Company under 
the supervision and control of the Board of 

Directors of the Company 

9. Terms & conditions of | Mr. Utkarsh Jain is appointed as Executive 

Appointment and_ proposed | Director,having a total remuneration of Rs. 
remuneration to be paid. 36,00,000/-. Terms & conditions of appointment 

are mentioned in Board resolution 

dated,September 06, 2023with the 

recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee &as approved by the members of the 
Company in its 38th AGM held on September 16, 
2023. 

Proposed remuneration is to be recommended by 

the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 

approved by Board of Directors and Members of 
the Company. 

10. Pecuniary relationship, | Mr. Utkarsh Jain is the Promoter and Shareholder 
directly or indirectly, with the | of the Company and son of Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, 

Company or relationship with | Managing Director of the Company. 
the managerial personnel, if 
any 

11. Directorship held in other 1. GAURANG DEVELOPERS PRIVATE 

12
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Companies 
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N
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so

 

11. 

LIMITED 

SUPER REALCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

SHREYANS BUILDTECH PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

SHREYANS LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

N EC C LOGISTICS LIMITED 

SUVI DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

N EC C AUTOMOBILES PRIVATE LIMITED 

SHREYANS BUILDWELL PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

N ECC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

.INDIKA AGRO PRODUCTS PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

SHUBHI AGENCIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

12. ALLSPACE SUPPLY CHAIN PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

12. Memberships/Chairmanships 
of committees of other 

companies 

Nil 

13. Number of Board Meetings 
attended during the year. 

16. Details of the same form part of the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

Date: September 07, 2024 

Place:Delhi 

On Behalf of the Board of Director of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Sd/- 
Sunil Kumar Jain 

(Chairman and Managing Director) 

DIN: 00010695 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

To 

The Members, 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Your Board of Directors has immense pleasure in presenting the Thirty Ninth(39%) Annual Report of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited(the “Company”)together with the Audited Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

1.1 The highlights of performance of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 were as under with 

comparative position of previous year’s performance: 

(Rs. in Lakhs except EPS) 

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-23 | (% Growth) 

Revenue from Operations 33511.52 30599.22 9.52 

Profit before Tax 1016.83 939.95 8.18 

Tax 214.62 362.85 153.94 
Profit After Tax 802.20 577.10 39.00 
Total Comprehensive Income 791.02 592.45 33.52 

Earning per Share(EPS) 0.84 1.15 26.96 
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1.2 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

During the year, the revenue from operations has beenincreased to Rs. 33511.52Lakhs as against Rs. 

30599.22 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2022-2023 registering aprofit of 9.52%. Our Net 

profits has Increased to Rs. 1016.83 Lakhs for the current financial year 2023-24as against Rs. 

939.95 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2022-23, recording anincrease of 8.18 %. 

1.3_ STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 
The operational highlights of the Company during the year are as follows:- 

Work Order Work Order 
Created Approved 

Work Order 
Work Order Assigned 

‘alii 

sackton @) 

Work Order 
Closed Gut. a 2 

() Documentation 
Updated 

Work Order 
Sent To Tech 

Work order /contracts 

TATA STEEL LIMITED 

* Work order worth of Rs. 520 cr. for transportation of Iron Ore from Khondbond Iron &Mn Mine 

and Katamati Iron Mine to different Railway Sidings & Direct destinations to different 

customers.from01.09.2023 to 31.08.2026. 

* Work order worth of Rs. 34.21 cr. for transportation of Iron Ore from Khondbond Iron &Mn 

Mine and Katamati Iron Mine to different Railway Sidings & Direct destinations to different 

customers.from01.09.2023 to 31.08.2026. 

* This is an interim work order for loading and transportation of iron ore from Khondbond and 

Katamati iron ore mines. Work order worth of Rs. 2.85 cr. from 01.09.2023 to 30.11.2023. 

* Work order worth of Rs. 43 cr. for transportation of Iron Ore from Khondbond Iron &Mn Mine 

and Katamati Iron Mine to different Railway Sidings & Direct destinations to different 

customers.from01.09.2023 to 30.11.2023. 

Other Work order /contracts 

e¢ Work order worth of Rs. 50crfor transportation of polymer from GAIL(INDIA) LIMITED, pata to 
various destinationsin India for a period of 3 years from 2023-2026. 

e RUNGTA SONS PVT. LTD.This contract will be effect from 15.11.2023 and will remain enforce up to 

31.03.2024.Transportation of San-Indpur Iron& BauxiteMinesandOraghatIronOre Mines in Haldia Port 

with arate MT 1600. 

e Work order from M/s TVS SUPPLY CHAIN for Transport Agreementfor a period from November 

2023-December, 2024 

e Work order from M/s MANKIND PHARMA LIMITED for a period of 1 year from 1° August, 2023 to 

31" July, 2024.for transportation of trucks at the factory for loading & unloading and transportation of 

consignments at Kolkatta, Patna, Ranchi, Indore, Bangalore, Lucknow, Varanshi, Gorakhpur at different 

rates 
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e Work order fromM/s HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITEDfor transportation of the Aluminum 

products from Mahan to different customers at various locations within Indiafor a period of 1 

year from 1“ July, 2023 to 31* June, 2024. 

¢ Work order from M/s HYGENIC RESEARCH INSTITUTE PVT. LTD. for transportation of FMCG 

Cosmetics goods from HRI origin hubs by means of partial truck load/ LCL/ FTL to various fixed 

destinations across India from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2024. 

* Statement of work from M/S COMMSCOPE INDIA PVT LTDfor placing of vehicle from Goa to 

different locations from 1st of April, 2022 and the Agreement continues in full force and effect 

until Supplier’s completion of the Services as set forth in the Statement of Work(s). 

* Work order from DEEPAK FASTENERS LIMITEDfor transportation of materials from Ludhiana 

to anywhere in India and vice-versa w.e.f 25.01.2023. 

* Service contract from M/S DIC INDIA LIMITEDfor transportation of products manufactured or 

sold by the Company from its manufacturing/ processing/ storage/depot through road from 

01.04.2022 till 31.03.2025to various locations in/across India. 

* Work order from M/S L G BALAKRISHNAN & BROS. LIMITEDfor collection and delivery of 

material on ingress and egress from /to various designated locations from 01.08.2022 to 

31.07.2024. 

2. DIVIDEND 
Your Company needs Capital for its expansion plans, therefore the Board of Director has decided 

to invest the profit into the operations of the Company. Hence, no dividend is recommended for 

the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

3. SHARE CAPITAL 

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs.10,000.00 Lakhs 

consisting of 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each and the issued & paid up share capital of 

the Company was Rs.9530.30Lakhs consisting of 9,52,31,154equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 

1,43,784partly paid up equity shares of 5 each/- pursuant to the allotment of equity shares under 

Right Issue. 

These shares rank paripassu with the existing Equity Shares of theCompany, in all respects. The 

Company has not issued any EquityShares with differential rights, sweat equity shares or bonus 

sharesduring the year under review. 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
The Company doesn’t propose to transfer any amount to General Reserve during the financial 

year 2023-24. 
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5. ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134(3) and Section 92(3) of the Act, read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Returnof the Company for the 

Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 is available on the Company’s websiteat 

www.neccgroup.com. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

PORAT 

o
m
:
 

CORP rs yi 
s DIRECTOR: 

Econpans TION Ne 
3 SHAREHOLDERS Sis 
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NA
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We, at NECC, believe that good and effective Corporate Governance is critical to achieve 

corporate vision and mission of the organization; it is more of an organizational culture than a 

mere adherence to rules and regulations. Your Company has established and maintained a 

strong ethical environment, overseen by Board of Directors, where 3 out of 6 Directors are 

Independent. The Company’s practices and policies reflect the true spirit of Corporate 

Governance initiatives. 

Your Company is in compliance of all mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015. In terms of Regulation 34(3)read with Schedule V of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, a Report on Corporate Governance along with Compliance Certificate 

confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance during FY 2023-24 issued by the 

Practicing Company Secretaries, M/s A. K. Friends & Co. is attached and forms integral part of 

this Report (herein referred to Corporate Governance Report”). 

BOARD & COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

Sixteen (16) Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. The 

maximum gap between any two Board Meetings was less than 120 days. For details of meetings 

of the Board, please refer Corporate Governance Report (CGR) forming part of this Annual 

Report. 

As on 31st March 2024, the Board of Directors has constituted the Audit Committee, the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The details on the composition of the Board and its 

committees and changes thereof are provided in the CGR. 
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8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A Appointment/Reappointment/Cessation/Resignation by Independent Director: 

Mr. Mohak Jain ceased to be Director of the Company as Independent Director effective from 

09% June, 2023. Simultaneously, he also ceased to be a Member of the Audit 

Committee,Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

Mr. Utsav Jain ceased to be Director of the Company as Independent Director effective from 

09% June, 2023.Simultaneously, he also ceased to be a Member of the Audit 

Committee,Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain ceased to be Director of the Company as Independent Director 

effective from 28 March, 2024.Simultaneously, he also ceased to be a Chairman of the 

Audit Committee,Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee 

B_ Retirement by rotation and subsequent reappointment 
As per the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Utkarsh Jainis retiring by rotation and being 

eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking approval of the members for 
reappointment and his brief resume along with other details as stipulated under the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, form part of the Notice of the AGM 

Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 

Company during the Financial Year 2023-24: 

B
w
W
N
r
R
 Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, Chairman & Managing Director 

Mr. Utkarsh Jain, Whole-Time Director 

Mr. Shyam Lal Yadav, Chief Financial Officer* 

Ms. Mamta Bisht, Company Secretary& Compliance Officer. 

* Mr. Shyam Lal Yadav will cease to be Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 

closing business hours of 30 September, 2024. 

9. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT 
With reference to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors hereby confirmed 

that:- 

1. 

ii. 

iii. 

vi. 

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2024, the 

applicableAccounting Standards have been followed along with properexplanation relating 

to material departures; 

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of FY 2023-24 and of the profit of the 

Company for thatperiod; 

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud andother irregularities; 

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a goingconcern basis; 

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

adequate systems and processes, commensurate with the size of the Company and the 

nature of its business, have been put in place by the Company, to ensure compliance with the 
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provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems and processes are operating 

effectively. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Board of your Company has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. Your 

Company has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 

M/s Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, 

has audited the financial statements included in the Annual Report and has issued an attestation 

report on our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Section 143 of Companies 

Act 2013). 

11. AUDITORS 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Members in their 36%AGM had appointed M/s.Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co,, Chartered 

Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 010192N) as StatutoryAuditors of the Company to hold 

office for a period of upto 5 (Five) yearsi.e. till the conclusion of the 41stAGM of the Company to 
be held in the financial Year 2026.The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified 

from continuing as Auditors of the Company. 

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 contains the following 

qualifications asmade by the statutory auditors: 

1. The Company has not provided provision for doubtful debts. 

2. The Company has not recognized right to use assets of leased property. 

3. The Debit & credit balances are subject to confirmation. 

However, the management has already clarified that: 

1. The Company has not provided provision for doubtful debts since the debtors are fully 

realizable. 

2. The Company has not recognized right to use assets of leased property since the lease are 

not long term lease. 

3. Company is in process of getting confirmation from parties. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 

of the Company had appointed M/s Ashish Kumar Friends & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries 

(COP No.4056), New Delhi to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 

March 31, 2024. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is 

annexed to this report as Annexure IV. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

During the year under review, under Section 143 (12) ofthe Act, neither the statutory auditors 

nor the secretarialauditors have reported to the Audit Committee, anyinstances of material fraud 

committed against theCompany by its officers or employees, the details ofwhich need to be 

mentioned in the Board’s Report 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Act & rules made thereunder, M/s Sanghi& Co., Chartered 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 012619N), acts as Internal Auditor of the Company. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY 
Pursuant to Section 186 of the Act and Schedule V of the SEBI ListingRegulations, disclosure on 

particulars relating to loans, advances,guarantees and investments are forms part of the 

financialstatements and are provided in this AnnualReport. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements /transactions entered by the 

Company with the related partieswere in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 

basis. 

The Particulars of contract or arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties as 

per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations are disclosed in Form AOC- 

2, in Annexure Lis annexed to this report. 

Further, during the year, the Company had not entered into anycontract(s)/ arrangement(s) / 

transaction(s) with the related partieswhich could be considered material in accordance with 

the policyof the Company on materiality of related party transactions. 

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and ondealing with Related Party 

Transactions, as approved by the AuditCommittee and the Board of Directors, is placed on the 
Company’swebsite at the link: http://www.neccgroup.com/wp- 

content /uploads/2016/03 /Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction-NECC pdf 

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
There are no significant particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, technology absorption 

under Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 since your Company is not engaged in any 

manufacturing activity. No agreement has been entered into for Technology absorption. 

However, the Company has made intensive use of technology in its operation during the year 

under review. 

PARTICULARS REGARDING EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 
The Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research & Development during the financial 

year 2023-24. Further, the Company has no earning or outgo in Foreign exchange as per Rule 

8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

\ 

Risk Management comprises all the organizational rules and actions for early identification of 

risks in the course of doing business and the management of such risks. 

The Company has a Risk Management Policy which outlines the manner in which the Company 

identifies, assesses, monitors and manages risk. As the Company belongs to transportation and 

Logistics Industry and in the opinion of the Board, the following are the risks which would 

threaten the existence of the Company: 

e = =Material Handling 
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Motor Vehicle Accidents 

Slips, Trips, And Falls 

Competition 

Medical Management 

To recover the above-mentioned risks, the Company has adopted Risk Management Strategy 

which comprising of following stages: 

e Risk identification 

Risk analysis 

Risk evaluation 

Risk treatment 

Risk monitoring and review 

The Policy and Strategy is duly implemented and monitored in the Company. The Company has 

identified various risks and has taken various steps to mitigate them. The “Risk Management 

Policy” is available on the website of the Company’ at _ website 

linkhttps://neccgroup.com:5000/pdf/Risk-manaqment-Policy.pdf 

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY 

WwW, 1axpurinin 

The “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” prepared in the line with the provisions of Section 

135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, The Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
any statutory modification or amendment theretowas approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company. The “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” is available on the website of the 

Company at website link https://neccqroup.com:5000/pdf/CSR-Policy.pd; 

During the Financial Year 2023-24,the Company has undertaken various CSR activities in the 

field of Capacity Building for SewaKaaryaunder RashtriyaSewaBharati who focuses and work 

for the betterment of marginalized, oppressed, and neglected people in the field of health, 

education, and livelihood and also provide support and guidance in social activities and disaster 

and relief work. 

The Company hasundertaken newly CSR Activities under AdhyatmSadhna Kendra (A unit of 

AkhilBhartiya Anuvrat Nyas) established in 1964 to provide a serene space for spiritual 

aspirants to learn and practice Yoga, Meditation, various therapies and Naturopathy techniques. 

They share the secret of living a holistic and stress free life. 

The Annual Report on CSR activities in terms of the Companies(Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed asAnnexure-lIIto the Boards’ Report. 

18. EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS/INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

During the year, the Board has carried out an Annual evaluation of its own performance, 

performance of the Directors, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure 

and time schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and 
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Directors. The Chairman of the Committee also had interactions with each of the Directors and 

sought their feedback and suggestions on the overall Board Effectiveness and Directors 

performance. 

A structured questionnaire covering variousaspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy 

of thecomposition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture,execution and performance of 

specific duties, obligations andgovernance was prepared based on the Guidance note issuedby 

SEBI vide circular no, CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated 05.01.2017 and MCAvide Notification dated 

July 5, 2017 also prescribed that the provisions relating to review of performance of 

IndependentDirectors and evaluation mechanism, prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies 

Act, 2013, 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performanceof individual directors including 

the Chairman of the Board whowere evaluated on parameters such as guidance/ support 

tomanagement outside Board/ Committee meetings, degree offulfillment of key responsibilities, 
effectiveness of meetings etc. 

In addition, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 the 

Independent Directors reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and of the 

Board as a whole, performance of the Chairman of the Board taking into account the views of all 

the Directors, and the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company management and the Board and its sufficiency for the Board to effectively perform its 
duties. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
There is no Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies during the Financial Year 2023- 

24, 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 
The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) 

and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, is annexed to this report as Annexure III. None of the employees listed in the said 

Annexure is related to any Director of the Company. 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
FY 2023-24 was the year of transition of HR function, from beinga mere support function to a 

strategic business partner, as thedepartment redefined the work & the workforce to become an 

integral part of the business. 

The last three years of pandemic taught the Company successfullydealing with supply chain 

crisis, circumventing inflation, managinghybrid work environment, and maintaining continuous 

businessgrowth amid these disturbances. 

Your Company hasmore than 300+ branches across PAN INDIA, NEPAL and operational set ups 

into BHUTAN and BANGLADESH (upto border) and the total Manpower of the Company as on 

March 31, 2024 was 569employees which include Executives and Non-Executives. In order to 

increase the professional culture in the Company, 180 employees were appointed through 

Interview and written test during the year. 

The Employee Engagement initiatives include: 

> Revamping the Mess facility, providing bedding kits and beds for improved comfort 

>» Festivities like Women’s Day, Diwali and Holi celebrations 

> Training and Development efforts encompassing external programs alongside 

internalmodules tailored to employee grades.. 
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¢ TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 
As a measure of capacity building including up-gradation of employees’ skill and to ensure high 

delivery of performance, training and HRD continued to receive priority during the financial 

year. 

Training and Human Resource policy of the Company aims and sharpening business skills and 

competence required for better employee performance and provides all possible opportunities 

and support to the employees to improve their performance and productivity. Training was also 

provided to promote better understanding of professional requirements as well as to aware 

employees towards socio-economic environment in which business of the Company is carried 

out. 

SNO | TRAINING DATE VENUE 

Training in Eway bill 24.04.2023 | Corporate office training room 

2. | New invoicing for Accounts 15.05.2023 | Corporate office training room 

3. | New invoicing for Accounts 22.05.2023 | For South region in Chennai 

12.06.2023 
4. | Operational training review Corporate office training room 

5. | Training in Eway bill 11.09.2023 | Corporate office training room 

6. | Documentation Operation 21.11.2023 | Corporate office training room 

7. | Fleet Management 08.01.2024 | Corporate office training room 

8. | Operational training review 02.02.2024 Cuttack office 

9. | Operational training review _ | 05.03.2024 | Joda 

¢ REPRESENTATION OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES 
As on March 31, 2024, the Company has10 women employees, which represent 1.75% of the 

total work force. There is no discrimination of employees on the basis of gender. An internal 

compliant committee has been constituted to look after the welfare and provide protection 

against sexual harassment of women at workplace. 

« AWARDS AND RECOGNITION TO EMPLOYEES 
Employees’ management is the backbone of your Company and it is regarded as one of the 

important resources for the success of NECC. Over the years, your Company has strengthened its 

HR processes to ensure continual development and growth of its employees. In order to build 

the right organizational culture, the Company distributes various awards and recognition in 

terms of their performance, capabilities, communication skills, coordination etc. on quarterly or 

half yearly basis. Though NECC is an equal opportunity employer, special focus is given to 

employees for enhance their diversity and knowledge. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
In line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition &Redressal) Act, 2013, every employer of a workplace shall constitute an “Internal 

Compliant Committee” for redressal of compliant(s) against sexual harassment of women 

employees. Your Company has about 10 women employees in various cadres including 

Permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees. The Internal Compliant Committee aims 

toprovide protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of 

sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of 

providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. 

There was no complaint received from any employee during the financial year 2023-24 and 

hence no complaint isoutstanding as on March 31, 2024 for redressal. 
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STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

1. There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 

2023-24, 
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2023-24. 

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

The Company maintains an adequate system of Internal Controls including suitable 

monitoring procedures, which ensure accurate and timely financial reporting of various 

transactions, efficiency of operations and compliance with statutory laws, regulations and 

Company policies. For more details, please refer to the “Management Discussion and 

Analysis” annexed to this report. 

The Company has not issued any Stock options to the Directors’ or any employee of the 

Company. 
Information on composition, terms of reference and number of meetings of the Board & its 

Committees held duringthe year, establishment of vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy 

and web-links for familiarization/training policy ofDirectors, Policy on Materiality of 

Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party Transactions and Policyfor 

determining Material Subsidiaries, Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel, Sitting 

fees to IndependentDirectors, etc. have been provided in the Report on Corporate 

Governance, prepared in compliance of provisions ofSEB] (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, which forms part of the Annual Report. 

Independent Directors were appointed on the Board of Directors of the Company 
during the financial year2023-24, requiring disclosure to be made under Rule 
8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
The Company is compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

24. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY 

> RIGHT ISSUE OF THE COMPANY 

Pursuant to the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company being accorded on July 
05, 2022 for issuance of the equity shares of the Company by way ofa rights issue to the 
eligible equity shareholders of the Company, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 
Tuesday, May 16, 2023 has approved the terms and conditions for Rights Issue of up to 
4,51,77,602 partly paid-up Equity Shares with face value of Rs. 10.00/- each (‘Rights Shares’) for 
cash at a price of Rs. 18.00/- (‘Issue Price’) per Right Shares including a premium of Rs.8.00/- per 
Rights Shares aggregating up to Rs. 8,131.97 Lakhs payable on Application Rs. 9.00/- and balance 
Rs. 9.00/- payable on First and Final call in the ratio of 9 (Nine) Equity Shares for every 10 (Ten) 
fully paid-up Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the Company. 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on Wednesday, May 24, 2023 has fixed friday, June 02, 
2023 as the record date for the purpose of determining the equity shareholders entitled to receive 
the rights entitlement in the Rights Issue. The Offer period for the eligible securities commenced 
on Wednesday, June 14, 2023 and end on Tuesday, July 11, 2023. [both days inclusive]. 

On Monday, July 17, 2023, the Rights Issue Committee of the Company approved the allotment of 
4,51,77,602partly paid-up equity shares to the successful Shareholders. 

The Synopsis of the Right Issue are as follows: 

i Instrument : | Partly-paid up equity shares 

ii Stock Exchanges : | BSE Ltd & National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

ii Total no. of Rights Equity |: | 4,51,77,602 partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 2 10.00/- 

shares proposed to be issued each for cash at a price of 2 18.00/- per rights equity share amount 

aggregating to 2] 8131.97 Lakhs 
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ili Issue Price 21 18.00/- per partly paid-up Equity Share On Application 2] 9.00 per 

Equity Share 

iv Record Date Friday, June 02, 2023 for the purpose of determining the equity 

shareholders entitled to receive the rights entitlement in the rights 

issue [“Eligible Equity Shareholders”]. 

Vv Rights entitlement ratio Ratio of 9 Rights Equity Shares for Every 10 Fully Paid-Up Equity 

Share held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders on the Record Date 

ie. Friday, June 02, 2023. 

vi Issue period 

(a) Issue opening date Wednesday, June 14, 2023 

(b} Issue closing date Tuesday, July 11, 2023 

[both days inclusive] 

vii Lead Manager to the Issue CapitalSquare Advisors Private Limited 

viii_| Registrar to the Issue PurvaSharegistry (India) Private Limited 

ix Banker to the Issue Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 

x Gross subscription % 108.08% 

xi Date of Allotment July 17, 2023 

xii Listing Approval from Stock July 19, 2023 

Exchanges 

xiii | Trading Approval from Stock July 21, 2023 

Exchanges 
#The RightsIssue Committee of the Company at its meeting dated 20.06.2023 extends the date of closure of Rights 
Issue from Tuesday, June 27, 2023 to Tuesday, July 04, 2023. It was further extended by the Right issue Committee at 

its meeting dated 27.06.2023, from Tuesday, July 04, 2023 to Tuesday, July 11, 2023 in order to provide an extended 
window to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the Company to subscribe to the Rights Shares. 

The Company has successfully closed the right issue by July 2023 which was 
oversubscribed by the shareholders. 

e Thereafter, the Board of Directors of the Company has, at its meeting held on October 03, 
2023, decided to make the First and final call of & 9.00/- per partly paid-up equity 
share (comprising Fl 5.00 /- towards face value and 2] 4.00/- towards premium) 

Instrument Partly-paid up equity shares 

Total no. of Rights Equity 

shares issued 

4,41,65,375partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 2 5.00/- 

each 

Record Date Monday, October 09, 2023 

Exchanges 

iv Issue period 

(a) Issue opening date Wednesday, October 18, 2023 

(b} Issue closing date Wednesday, November 01, 2023 

[both days inclusive] 

Vv Date of Allotment November 03, 2023 

vi Listing Approval from Stock November 07, 2023 

vii Trading Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

November 09, 2023 

#NSDL has rejected approval on 1,29,508 shares as they were already pledged, which has 
later released & accordingly trading Approval on 1,29,508 shares has been received vide BSE 
& NSE letter dated 30.11.2023 

e Thereafter, the Right Issue Committee, duly authorized by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, at its meeting held on November 21, 2023, decided to make the 1st Reminder 
of First and final callof & 9.00/- per partly paid-up equity share (comprising H 5.00/- 
towards face value and 2 4.00/- towards premium) 

Instrument Partly-paid up equity shares 

Total no. of Rights Equity 

shares issued 

6,76,282partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 21 5.00/- each 
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Monday, November 27, 2023 

Monday, December 11, 2023 

[both days inclusive] 

Date of Allotment December 14, 2023 

Listing Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

NSE December 15, 2023& 

BSE December 18, 2023 

vi Trading Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

December 26, 2023 

#CDSL has rejected approval on 36 shares due to technical issue & accordingly trading 
Approval on 36 shares has been received vide BSE & NSE letter dated 29.12.2023 

e Thereafter, the Right Issue Committee, duly authorized by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, at its meeting held on January 03, 2024, decided to make the 2"Reminder of 
First and final callof 2 9.00/- per partly paid-up equity share (comprising Fl 5.00/- 
towards face value and fl 4.00/- towards premium) 

Instrument Partly-paid up equity shares 

Total no. of Rights Equity 

shares issued 

1,79,135partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 21 5.00/- each 

iii Issue period 

(a) Issue opening date 

(b} Issue closing date 

Monday, January 08, 2024 

Monday, January 08, 2024 

[both days inclusive] 

Date of Allotment January 31, 2024 

Listing Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

NSE January 31, 2024& 

BSE February 06, 2024 

vi Trading Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

February 19, 2024 

“+ The Board of Directors of the Company had on Wednesday, December 06, 2023, approved 
the alteration in the objects for utilization of funds out of the net proceeds of the Rights 
Issue of Equity Shares of the Company and change in the Objects of Issue as stated in the 
Letter of Offer dated May 24, 2023by passing Special Resolution through Postal Ballot 
on December 06, 2023. The new objects forUtilizationof such net proceeds as mentioned 
below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr Objects of the Amount to Amount Balance Revised Amount to 

No Issue as per be funded Utilized Amount Objects be funded 
Letter of Offer from the from the Net 

Net proceeds 
proceeds 

1. Construction 6,447.00 1,905.00 4,542.00* 1.Construction 200.00 

And Development and 

of Warehouse Development of 

Warehouse 

2.To invest in 846.25 

the shares of 

M/s. SG Logistic 
Management 

PvtLtd. 

3.Repayment of 1,478.00 
Unsecured Loan 
obtained from 

the promoter, 

for the Advance 
payment made 
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for acquisition 
of the 

Warehouse 
land 

4, Repayment of 

Term Loans 

1,570.00 

General 
Corporate 

Purpose 

1,585.24 1,585.24 5 General 
Corporate 

447.75* 

Total UptoRs. 

8,032.24 
Upto 

Rs.3,490.2 
Up to Rs. 

4,542.00 

Purpose** 

UptoRs. 

4,542.00 

4 

*Assuming full receipt of First and Final Call Money with respect to Rights Shares in the Issue 
** General Corporate Purpose is within the threshold limit Le. 25% of the Gross proceeds 
amounts to Rs. 2032.99 lakhs, out of which Rs. 1,585.24 lakhs has been utilized and the 

additional (remaining balance) of Rs.447.75 lakhs has been allocated and will be utilized as 
per the revised objects 

As on the date of the Letter of Offer, the Company had already entered into an Agreement for 
acquisition of the Warehouse at Revenue Estate of Village-Sunari&Village-Chundrika,Tehsil- 
Tauru, Distt-Gurgaon (Haryana) and had also already made an Advance payment of Rs 1,478 
Lacs. 

In addition to the advance payment of Rs 1,478 Lacs, the Company has also paid Rs 1,905 
lakhs outofthe Rights Issue proceeds. However, during last 6-7 months, many new 
warehouses have come up in the Taruru Tehsil and all of a sudden, there has been an excess 
of supply as against the demand. In view of these reasons, the Company does not foresee 
spending of the entire Rights Issue proceeds, for the objects as disclosed in the said Letter of 
Offer and therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company intends to vary the terms of 
Objects of the Issue as disclosed in the said Letter of Offer.In the meantime, the Company has 
also come across a more lucrative business proposal, to invest in a company called SG Logistic 
Management Pvt.Ltd. for the purpose of carrying out transportation activities through the use 
of electric vehicles. 

The new proposal to decrease the funding in the warehouse and utilizethe Rights Issue 
proceeds partly in the above mentioned investment _in equity shares of SG Logistic 
Management Pvt. Ltd. and partly for repayment of loans availed in the past, would not 
hamper future growth of the Company. On the contrary, the management is of the view that 
the changed objects would help the Company to become futuristic and be better prepared for 
the next growth cycle in logistics industry, which would happen through sustainable green 
logistics, Also, the repayments of loans would help the Company to improve our profitability 
and thus invest more money from cash flows to grow the business. 

Pursuant to the First and Second Reminder-cum-Final Forfeiture Notice of the First & Final 
call, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on Wednesday, March 28, 2024 has approved 
the conversion of 13,026 partly pale up shares to fully paid up. 

i Instrument Partly-paid up equity shares 

ii Total no. of Rights Equity 13,026partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 21 5.00/- each 

shares issued 

ili Issue period Pursuant to the First and Second Reminder-cum-Final Forfeiture 

Notice 

iv Date of Allotment March 28, 2024 

Vv Listing Approval from Stock NSE April 02, 2024& 

Exchanges BSE April 04, 2024 

vi Trading Approval from Stock April 15, 2024 

Exchanges 
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e Thereafter, the Right Issue Committee, duly authorized by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, at its meeting held on August 05, 2024, pursuant to the 3 Reminder of First 
and final callof @ 9.00/- per partly paid-up equity share (comprising 2 5.00/- towards 
face value and — 4.00/- towards premium) has converted 53,635 partly paid up shares 
into fully paid up shares. 

i Instrument : | Partly-paid up equity shares 

ii Total no. of Rights Equity | : | 53,635 partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 2 5.00/- each 

shares issued 

vi Issue period : 

(a) Issue opening date Friday, May 24, 2024 

(b} Issue closing date Friday, June 07, 2024 

[both days inclusive] 

xi Date of Allotment : | August 05, 2024 

xii Listing Approval from Stock | : NSE August 09, 2024 & 

Exchanges BSE : Case is approved ,jhowever Approval letter awaited 

xiii | Trading Approval from Stock |: | To be applied 

Exchanges 

>» PREFERENTIAL ISSUE OF THE COMPANY 

Pursuant to the consent and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company in its Board meeting 

held on February 14, 2024 reviewed and discussedthe fund requirement and accordinglypassed 
of Special Resolution by the Shareholders in Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 08, 

2024,to create, issue, offer and allot equity shares/ Share warrants on preferential basis up to 

maximum of 46,25,062 Equity Shares of the Company of the face value of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten 

only) (“Equity Shares”) at a price of Rs. 32.05/- (Rupees Thirty Two and Five paisa Only) which 

includes a premium of Rs. 22.05/- (Rupees Twenty two and Five paisa only) per Equity Share 

aggregating up to a maximum of Rs. 14,82,33,237.1 (Rupees Fourteen Crores Eighty Two Lakhs 

Thirty Three Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty Seven and One paisa only) to Promoters and other 

non-promoter group personfor cash consideration by way of preferential issue on a private 

placement basis in accordance with Section 62 (1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 

of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) 

Regulations 

Category of the Maximum no Maximum 
Name of the Proposed Equity Shares : : 

Proposed Consideration 
Allottee Allottee proposed to be Temes) 

allotted 

Sunil Kumar Jain 
(Preferential Allotment Promoter 39,55,062 12,67,59,737 

through Warrants) 

Hemant Kumar 

Aggarwal(Preferential 
Allotment through Equity Others 6,70,000 2,14,73,500 

shares) 

Total 46,25,062 14,82,33,237 

The Company is undertaking an issue and allotment of certain Equity Shares/warrants, the 
proceeds of which will be primarily used to meet the needs of the growing business of the 
Company, including working capital requirements for pursuing growth plans, Repayment of 
Borrowings, and for General corporate purposes. 

Thereafter, the consent and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company was accorded 
on April 04, 2024 to allot equity shares and Share warrants on preferential basis of 46,25,062 
Equity Shares of the Company of the face value of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten only) (“Equity 
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Shares”) at a price of Rs. 32.05/- (Rupees Thirty Two and Five paisa Only) which includes a 
premium of Rs. 22.05/- (Rupees Twenty two and Five paisa only) per Equity Share 
aggregating to Rs. 14,82,33,237.1 (Rupees Fourteen Crores Eighty Two Lakhs Thirty Three 
Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty Seven and One paisa only) to above mentioned Promoter 
and other non-promoter group person for cash consideration by way of preferential issue on 
a private placement basis: 

Instrument Preferential Allotment 

Total no. of Equity shares 

issued 

allotment of 6,70,000 Equity shares and 3955062 Share 

warrants convertible into equity shares on preferential 

basis at a price of Rs. 32.05/- (Rupees Thirty Two and 

Five paisa Only) which includes a premium of Rs. 22.05/- 

(Rupees Twenty two and Five paisa only) 

iii Date of Allotment April 04, 2024 

In- Principle Approval March 21, 2024 from NSE & BSE€ for 6,70,000 Equity 

Shares) 

Listing Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

BSE May 15, 2024 
NSE July 26, 2024 

vi Trading Approval from Stock 

Exchanges 

Applied & Approval is pending from Stock Exchanges 

*The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 28, 2024 has approved the conversion 
of 39,55,062 warrants into 39,55,062 equity sharesof Rs. 10/- each fully paid up with Rs.22.05/- 
premium per share.The Listing Application for further listing/trading of 39,55,062 Equity Shares of Rs. 
10/- each fully paid to be made to BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for the 

products/services of the Companyunder Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, read 

with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) AmendmentRules, 2014 prescribed by the Central 

Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, CostAccounts and 

Records are not required to be maintained by the Company 

POLICIES 
We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business 

transactions guided by our value system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandated the formulation of certain policies for all listed 

companies. 

All our corporate governance policies are available on our website ie. www.neccgroup.com 

STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 
Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable statutory 

provisions is annexed to this report as under: 

Particulars Annexure 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties I 

Annual Report On Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) I 

Activities 

Particulars of Employees and Remuneration as per Rule 5 of Ul 

The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor of IV 

the Company 
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28. ‘THINK GREEN, GO GREEN’ INITIATIVE 
The Companies Act, 2013 permits companies to send documents like Notice of Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Report and other documents through electronic means to its 
members at their registered email addresses. As a responsible Corporate Citizen, the 
Company has actively supported the implementation of ‘Green Initiative’ of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA)and effected electronic delivery of Notices and Annual Reports to 
shareholders, whose email IDs are registered. 

Further, pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing e- 
voting facility to all members to enable them to cast their votes electronically in respect of 
resolutions set forth in the Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Company will also 
be conducting the AGM this year through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means. 
Members can refer to the detailed instructions for e-voting and electronic participation in 
the AGM, as provided in the Notice of the AGM. 

Members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register 
their e-mail address with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (R&TA) of the 
Company/Depository Participant (DP) of the respective member and take part in the Green 
Initiative of the Company. 

29. WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism hasbeen established for Directors 
and employees to report to themanagement, instances of unethical, actual or 
suspected,fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethicspolicy.The Ethics 
and Whistle Blower Policy provides for directaccess to the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee. The policyis available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at: 
https://neccgroup.com:5000/pdf/Vigil-Mecchanism-Policy.pdf 

30. THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
During the year under review, there is no application made/proceeding pending against the 
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

31. VALUATION AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT 
During the year under review, the Company has not enteredin any one time settlement with 
any of the Banks/Financiallnstitutions and therefore, the relevant disclosures are 
notapplicable to the Company. 

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The Board of Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support and 

goodwill of the esteemed Shareholders, Bankers, Financial Institutions, Business partners and 

other Stakeholders. The Directors also thank to M/s,Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co, Statutory 

Auditor and M/s Ashish Kumar Friends & Co., Secretarial Auditor and other professionals for 

their valued contribution. The Directors also sincerely appreciate and thank all the employees of 

the Company for their valuable contribution anddedicated efforts in steering the Company to 

excellent performance for yet another year in succession. 

On Behalf of the Board of Director of 

Place: Delhi North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Date: September 07,2024 

Sd/ 
(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695



“ANNEXURE I” TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

FORM AOC-2 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY THE 

COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

A. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s Not Applicable 

length basis 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

Nature of contracts /arrangements /transactions 

Duration of the contracts /arrangements /transactions 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 

transactions 

date(s) of approval by the Board 

Amount paid as advances, if any: 

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as 

required under first proviso to section 188 

B. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

S. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of | Salienttermsof | Date(s) of | Amount 

No. related party and contracts/a | the contracts | the contracts or approval paid as 

nature of rrangemen / arrangements or by the advanc 

relationship ts/transact | arrangemen transactions Board, if es, if 

ions ts/transactio including the any: any: 

ns value, if any: 

1. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 40,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Forty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 40,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Forty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

3. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 75,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Seventy 

Director of NECC Ltd. Five Thousand 

Only) 
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4, Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 75,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Seventy 

Director of NECC Ltd. Five Thousand 

Only) 

5. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 75,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Seventy 

Director of NECC Ltd. Five Thousand 

Only) 

6. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 25,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Twenty 

Director of NECC Ltd. five thousand 

Only) 

7. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 50,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Fifty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

8. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 20,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Twenty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

9. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 25,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Twenty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Five Thousand 

Only) 

10. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 1,50,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees One Lakh 

Director of NECC Ltd. Fifty Thousand 

Only) 

11. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 10,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Ten 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

12. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 15,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Fifteen 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

13. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 10,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Ten 

Director of NECC Ltd. Thousand Only) 

14. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Sunil Kumar | Agreement | 31.01.2024 25,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Managing (Rupees Twenty 

Director of NECC Ltd. Five Thousand 

Only) 

15. Mrs. Vanya Jain Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature:Mrs. Vanya | Agreement | 31.01.2024 75,000/-P.M. 

Jain is spouse of Mr. (Rupees Seventy 

Sunil Kumar Jain Five Thousand 

Only) 
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16. Mrs. Vanya Jain Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of  INR| 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Mrs. Vanya | Agreement | 31.01.2024 5,000/-P.M. 

Jain is spouse of Mr. (Rupees Five 

Sunil Kumar Jain Thousand Only) 

17. Mr. Utkarsh Jain Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR] 14.02.2023 Nil 

Nature: Mr. Utkarsh | Agreement | 31.01.2024 50,000/-P.M. 

Jain is the Whole- (Rupees Fifty 

Time Director of NECC Thousand Only) 

Ltd. 
18. Shreyans Buildtech Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR 14.02.2023 Nil 

Private Limited Agreement | 31.01.2024 75,000/-P.M. 

Nature: Directors of (Rupees Seventy 

the Company are in Five Thousand 

the Board of Shreyans Only) 

Buildtech Private 

Limited 

19. Shreyans Buildwell Lease 01.03.2023 to | Rent of INR 14.02.2023 Nil 

Private Limited Agreement | 31.01.2024 44,097 /-P.M. 

Nature: Directors of (Rupees Forty 

the Company are in 

the Board of Shreyans 

Buildwell Private 

Limited 

Four Thousand 

Ninety seven 

Only) 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Director of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Sd/- 
(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695 
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“ANNEXURE II” TO THE BOARD'S REPORT 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024 

1. BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY'S CSR POLICY 
The Company has its “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” in consonance with the CSR Policy 
framework enshrined in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility & Sustainability Policy)Rules, 2014 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India. 

NECC’s CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on 
education & skill development. Also embedded in this objective is support to the marginalized 
cross section of the society by providing opportunities to improve their quality of life. In line 
with the above, the Company ensures carrying out CSR projects/ programs in line with activities 
prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Overview of the activities/projects undertaken: 

The Company supports Rashtriya Sewa Bharati, a NGO working towards the upliftment& 
empowerment of the neglected and under-privileged sections of the society. The Company has 
undertaken various CSR activities in the field of Capacity Building for Sewa Kaarya under 
Rashtriya Sewa Bharati who focuses and work for the betterment of marginalized, oppressed, 
and neglected people in the field of health, education, and livelihood and also provide support 
and guidance in social activities and disaster and relief work. 

The Company hasundertaken newly CSR Activities under AdhyatmSadhna Kendra (A unit of 
Akhil Bhartiya Anuvrat Nyas) established in 1964 to provide a serene space for spiritual 
aspirants to learn and practice Yoga, Meditation, various therapies and Naturopathy techniques. 
They share the secret of living a holistic and stress free life. 

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE 

The Company has constituted CSR Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of the following Members:- 

S.No. | Name of Designation Number of Number of meetings 
Director /Member meetings of CSR of CSR Committee 

Committee held attended during the 
during the year year 

1. Mr. Sunil Kumar Managing 2 2 

Jain Director, 

Chairperson of 
CSR committee 

2. Mr. Utkarsh Jain Executive 2 2 

Director, Member 

of CSR committee 

3. Ms. Priya Singh Independent 
Director, Member 

of CSR committee 
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Mr. Chief Financial 2 2 

ShyamLalYadav Officer, Executive 
Member of CSR 

committee 

Mr. Vinod Nair General Manager 2 2 
, Executive 

Member of CSR 

committee 

WEB LINKS WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR 

PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE 

COMPANY 

e The composition of the CSR committee is available on our website, at 
http://www.neccgroup.com/Corporatelnformation 

e The Committee, with the approval of the Board, has adopted the CSR Policy as required 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Policy of the Company is 
available on our website, at https://neccgroup.com:5000/pdf/CSR-Policy.pd, 

. DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF 

SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE 

The Company doesn’t fall under the purview of Impact assessment , through an Independent 
agency as the Company’s average CSR obligation is less than ten crore rupees in the three 
immediately preceding financial years. 

. DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET-OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) 

OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLIC 

RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET-OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF 

ANY 

S.No Financial Year Amount available | Amount required to 

for _set-off from | be set-off for the 

preceding financial | financial__years, if 

years (in Rs) any (in Rs) 

1. 2023-2024 NA NA 

AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5 

The average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of 
computation of CSR expenditure is as under: 

Financial Year(s) Profits (in lakhs) 

2022-2023 934.83 

2021-2022 533.71 

2020-2021 124.77 

Total 1,593.31 

Average of last 3 years 531.10 
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7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :Rs. 10.62 
Lakhs 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years: NIL 

(c ) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL 

(d)Total CSR obligation for the financial year:Rs. 10.62 lakhs 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund 
spent for Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VII as per 
the ; section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5). 

Financial | Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of 

Rs). (in Transfer* Fund Transfer 
Ss. 

10,62,000 | - - NA NA NA 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 
year: nil 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Rs. 
10.62 /- lakhs
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@) | (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
S.No. | Name of the project | Item from the | Local Location of the | Amount spent for the | Mode of | Mode of 

list of | area project projects (in Rs.) Implementation- | Implementation- 
activities in| (Yes/No) | State | District Direct (Yes/No) | through 

schedule VII implementing 
to the Act Agency 

EDUCATION 

1 Contribution in the | Promoting Yes Delhi | New 1,00,000 Yes No 

field of Capacity | education, Delhi 
Building for | including 

SewaKaaryaunder special 

RashtriyaSewaBharati | education and 
employment 

enhancing 

vocation skills 
especially 

among 
children, 

women, 
elderly and 

the differently 

abled and 
livelihood 

enhancement 
projects. 

2. Donation to| It provides a| Yes Delhi | Central | 9,62,000 Yes No 

AdhyatmSadhna serene space Delhi 

Kendra (A unit of] for — spiritual 
AkhilBhartiya aspirants to 

Anuvrat Nyas) | learn and 
established in 1964 practice Yoga, 

Meditation, 

various 
therapies and 

Naturopathy 
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techniques. 

living 

They share 
the secret of 

holistic and 
stress free life. 

a 

TOTAL 10,62,000 

(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: NIL 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

(f} Total Amount spent for the financial Year: Rs. 10.62 lakhs 

(g) Excess amount for Set off, if any:NIL 

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial year (s): 

S.No. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount 

Financial transferred to | spent in the under schedule VII as per section 135(6), if remaining to 

Year Unspent CSR | reporting any. be spent in 

Account financial Name of | Amount (in Rs.) Date of succeeding 

under section | Year (in Rs.) | the Fund transfer. | financial years 
135(6) (in (in Rs.) 

Rs.} 

1. 2022-2023 NA NA 

2. 2021-2022 NA NA NA NA 

3. 2020-2021 NA 2,29,500 

x 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

Refer pt. 8© of the Annexure. 
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10. IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS RELATING TO THE ASSET SO 

CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

No capital asset was created / acquired for fiscal 2024 through CSR spend. 

11, SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PERCENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT 

AS PER SECTION 135(5) 

Not Applicable 

For North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Place: Delhi 
Date: September 07,2024 

Sd/- 

(Sunil Kumar Jain) 
Managing Director & Chairman of CSR Committee 
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“ANNEXURE III” TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 
Statement under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of 

the employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-24: 

S. No| Name(s) of Designation Ratio to Median 

Director(s) Remuneration 

Sunil Kumar Jain Managing Director 23.53 

2. | Utkarsh Jain Whole-Time 17.65 

Director 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial 

Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 

financial year 2023-2024: 

S. No} Name(s) of KMP Designation Percentage 

Increase 

1. | Shyam Lal Yadav CFO& V.P. 5.18 

2. | Mamta Bisht Company Secretary 8.73 

3. Other Details required under Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

S. No. | Particulars 

i) Percentage increase in the median | - 

remuneration of employees in the financial 

year: 

ii) Number of permanent employees on the | 569 

rolls of company: 

iii) Average percentile increase already made in | - 

the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial 

year: 

iv) Comparison of Average percentile increase | - 

in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration 

and justification thereof: 

v) Affirmation: The Board affirms that the 

remuneration paid is as per the 

remuneration policy of the Company. 
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4. Details of Employees 

drawing Remuneration in 

excess of salary drawn by 

the managingdirector or 

whole-time director 
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Name of Designati | Remunerat nature of | qualifications and | Date of | age last the 

Employee ion ion drawn jemploymen | experience Joining (in employmen | percentag 

on Yearly {t Years theld e of equity 

basis (in j shares 

Rs.) held 
*SHYAM LAL | CFO& V.P. | 48,72,000 Permanent |B.A Economics and /01/12/1986| 61 Green 0.00 

YADAV Master in Economics Carriers & 

from DU. Contractors 

He has been with the Private 

group since 1986 and Limited 

has managed Finance, 

Operation and 

Marketing 

*Mr ShyamLal Yadav had tendered his resignation on August 01, 2024 & his resignation will be effective from the 

closure of working hours of 30.09.2024. 

5. Details of Top Ten Employees 

Name of Designati [Remuneration| nature of | qualifications and Date of age last % of equity 

Employee on drawn on |/employme experience Joining (in | employme shares held 

Yearly nt Years)| ntheld 

basis (in Rs.) 

SUNIL KUMAR | Chairman 48,00,000 Permane | Graduation in 10/10/1994) 62 - NIL 

JAIN & nt Commerce from DU 

Managing and he leads the 

Director company in all 

sectors vide 

operation, marketing 

and finance. He 

applied his expertise 

to the various 

Consignments 
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relating to transport, 
logistics and 

contributed directly 

to the project’s 

success. 
SHYAM LAL | CFO& V.P. 48,72,000 Permane |B.A Economics and |01/12/1986| 61 Green 0.00 

YADAV nt Master in Economics Carriers & 

from DU. Contractors 

He has been with the Private 

group since 1986 and Limited 

has managed 

Finance, Operation 

and Marketing 

UTKARSH JAIN | Whole 36,00,000 Permane | BSc (hons) in |16/12/2013) 30 - 7.57 
Time nt Management Studies, 

Director from the University 

of Nottingham, UK; 

IBS Hyderabad 

VINOD NAIR General 21,00,000 Permane | B.A Honor’s in ]01/11/1995) 58 D.P.S_ India 0.000 

Manager- nt Economics from DU Ltd (a 

HR & and M.B.A, L.L.B. Peerless 

Legal He has completed 27 Group 

years with the Company), 

organization. He is Abacus 

handling all the legal Computers 

compliances along Ltd, and 

with HR. Global Tele 

Systems 

(GTL) 
RAVI GUPTA General 21,00,000 Permane | Bachelors of Art |05/04/2014| 58 G.LR. 0.00 

Manager- nt Degree from DU. Movers 

Sales He has vast Private 
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knowledge of 

Operation, 

Marketing, and 

Accounts and helps 

the Management in 

taking crucial 

business decision 

Limited 

AKHILESH 
KUMAR DUBEY 

Deputy 

General 

Manager- 

Projects 

16,80,000 Permane 

nt 

MBA, University of 

Allahabad. He has a 

vast experience of 24 

years in  Sales& 

Marketing. 

07/01/2023 46 Inland 

World 

Logistics 

Pvt Ltd 

0.00 

DHARMENDRA 
KUMAR SINGH 

Assistant 

General 

Manager 

14,52,000 Permane 

nt 

Bachelor of Arts from 

Bihar University. He 

has vast experience 
of almost 20yrs in 

marketing and 

operations. 

14/01/2008 56 V. Trans 

Private 

Limited 

0.00 

SURYA 
SINGH 

NATH Senior 

Manager 

Accounts 

11,88,000 Permane 

nt 

Bachelor in 

Commerce and Cost 

& Works Accountant. 

He has been working 

with the company 

from almost 25 yrs. 

In field of Finance & 

Accounts. 

20/12/1996 56 NIL 

AVIJIT SEN Area 

Project 

Manager 

11,40,000 Permane 

nt 

Bachelor in 

Commerce 

(Hons.)from Calcutta 

University. He has 

vast experience of 

almost 29yrs___in 

01/03/2021 55 Maa 

Annapurna 

Transport 

agency Pvt 

Itd 

NIL 
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marketing. 

PURSHOTTAM Senior 9,60,000 Permane | He has vast |24/10/1968]} 77 Nil 

LAL SHARMA Tranship nt experience of almost 

ment 55yrs in 

manager Transportation. 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, Azad Market, 

Delhi-110006 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

(hereinafter called “The Company”)for the financial year ended31stMarch, 2024 [“period under 

review’ |. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’sbooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 

report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31s March, 2024according to the 

provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder including any re- 

enactment thereof; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. |The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers)Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015. 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009(Issue of equity shares of the Company to the existing 
shareholders on rights basis in their existing proportion.) 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014 (Not applicable during the financial year under review); 
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e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008(Not applicable during the financial year under review); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009(Not applicable during the financial year under review);and 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998(Not applicable during the financial year under review). 

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories &Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has compliedwith the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines,Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

Recommendations as a matter of best practice: 

In the course of our audit, I have made certain recommendations for good corporate practices to 

the compliance team, for its necessary consideration and implementation by the Company. 

Based on the Information received and records made available, I further report that: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors; 

2. Adequate notice was given to all the Directors regarding holding of the Board Meetings. Agenda 

was sent in advance before the meeting. There exists a system for Directors to seek and obtain 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting; 

3. Decisions at the Board Meetings were carried through with requisite majority & recorded as part 

of the minutes of the meetings. (No dissent was there, nor any dissent recorded). 

Based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the 

Compliance Certificate(s) of the Managing Director(s), Chief Financial Officer and Company 

Secretary taken on record by the Board of Directors at its meeting(s), | am of the opinion that the 

management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to 

monitor and ensure compliance with the specifically applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines as mentioned in this report and applicable general laws like labour laws, environmental 

laws, etc. 
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I further report that: 

Right Issueof Equity Shares 

Pursuant to the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company being accorded on July 05, 

2022 for issuance of the equity shares of the Company by way of a rights issue to the eligible 

equity shareholders of the Company, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on Tuesday, 

May 16, 2023 has approved the terms and conditions for Rights Issue of up to 4,51,77,602 

partly paid-up Equity Shares with face value of Rs. 10.00/- each (‘Rights Shares’) for cash at 

a price of Rs. 18.00/- (‘Issue Price’) per Right Shares including a premium of Rs.8.00/- per 

Rights Shares aggregating up to Rs. 8,131.97 Lakhs payable on Application Rs. 9.00/- and 

balance Rs. 9.00/- payable on First and Final call in the ratio of 9 (Nine) Equity Shares for 

every 10 (Ten) fully paid-up Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the 

Company. 

The Company has successfully closed the right issue by July 2023 which was 

oversubscribed by the shareholders. 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on Wednesday, March 28, 2024 has 

approved the conversion of 13,026 partly paid up shares to fully paid up. However, 

Listing/Trading Approval for the same was awaited as on March 31, 2024. 

As on March 31, 2024 Balance amount of Rs 12,94,056 on 1,43,784 partly paid 

shares are yet to be receive by the Company. 

Alteration of Object Clause 
The Board of Directors of the Company had on Wednesday, December 06, 2023, approved the 

alteration in the objects for utilization of funds out of the net proceeds of the Rights Issue of 

Equity Shares of the Company and change the Objects of Issue as stated in the Letter of Offer 

dated May 24, 2023by passing Special Resolution through Postal Ballot on December 06, 2023 

For A.K. FRIENDS & CO. 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

UDIN : F005129F001168071 Sd/- 

Peer review certificate no. 2786/2022 ASHISH KUMAR FRIENDS 

Proprietor 

C.P.No.: 4056 

Membership No.: FCS 5129 

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditor, which is annexed 

as Annexure ‘T’and forms an integeral part of this report. 
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To, 

ANNEXURE I 

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT ( 

The Members, 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. 

2. 

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness ofthe contents of the secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarialrecords. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion; 

My Audit examination is restricted only upto legal compliances of the applicable laws to be 

done by the Company;] have notchecked the practical aspects relating to the same. 

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company as well ascorrectness of the values and figures reported in various 

disclosures and returns as required to be submitted by the Company underthe specified 

laws, though I have relied to a certain extent on the information furnished in such returns. 

Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulation andhappening of events etc. 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of themanagement. My examination was limited to the 

verification of procedure on test-check basis. 

The contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and not in isolation of the 

observations, if any, in the report(s) furnished/to be furnished by any other 

auditor(s)/agencies/authorities with respect to the Company. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness withwhich the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

For A.K. FRIENDS & CO. 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

Sd/- 

ASHISH KUMAR FRIENDS 

Proprietor 

C.P. No.: 4056 

Membership No.: FCS 5129 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Corporate Governance is essentially a system by which Companies are governed and controlled by the 

management under the direction and supervision of the Board in the best interest of all stakeholders. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance 

in the Company. We, North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited, meet the requirement on Corporate 

Governance under Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and also follows the Secretarial 

Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 
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1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company’s philosophy on the Code of Governance is based on the belief that effective Corporate 

Governance practices constitute a strong foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are 

built to last. Your Company lays great emphasis on a corporate culture of conscience, integrity, 

fairness, transparency, accountability and responsibility for efficient and ethical conduct of its 

business. The driving forces of Corporate Governance at North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

are its core values-belief in people, entrepreneurship, customer orientation and the pursuit of 

excellence. 

NECC Corporate Governance Framework 

Sel ‘Nonelin: Corporate Management 
In spirit and Transparency: Communicate structure: Have as a Trustee: 
Letter: satisfy Ensure external and a simple and Management is 
both the Spirit transparency truthful y bout transparent the trustee of 
of the law and and maintain a how the corporate the 
letter of the high level of Company is structure driven Shareholders’ 

Law Disclosure ronnie solely by capital and not 
. 8 business needs the owner 
internally 

The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethicalgovernance practices. The Company 

has adopted a Code of Conductfor its employees and Directors. The Company’s Corporate 

Governancephilosophy has been further strengthened through the Code of Conductfor Prevention of 

Insider Trading and the Code of Fair Disclosure. The Company has in place Whistle Blower Policy 

which ensures corruption free work environment. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulatedunder Regulations 17 to 27 read with 

Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i)of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as 

applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors provides leadership and guidance, objective judgment and at the same time 

monitors the strategic direction of the Company. The Company is headed by an Executive Chairman. 

The Directors of NECC has the requisite qualification, expertise and experience that allow them to 

efficiently manage thebusiness of the Company and make effective contribution to the Board and its 
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Committees. Further, in the opinion of theBoard, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions 

specified in listing regulations and are independent of the management. 

A. Composition of the Board 

The key to good Corporate Governance is the optimum combination of the executive and non- 

executive Directors on the Board. As on March 31, 2024, the Board at NECC comprised of6 Directors, 

out of which 2 were Executive Directors, 1 was Non Independent Non-Executive Director and the 

other threedirectors are Independent Directors. 1 New Non Independent Non-Executive Director has 

been appointed in the Board meeting held on 14.02.2024 with the approval of shareholders at its 

Extra-ordinary General meeting held on 08.03.2024.Further,One Directorhas resigned from the post of 

Independent Director in Board Meeting held on 28.03.2024.The threeNon-Executive Independent 

Directorsare free from any business or other relationship that could materially influence their 

judgment. All the IndependentDirectors have confirmed that they meet the criteria ofindependence as 

mentioned under the SEBI Listing Regulations& the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. Further, 

none of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five 

committeesacross all the public companies in which he or she is a Director.Further, none of the 

Independent Directors on the Board is servingas an Independent Director in more than seven listed 

entities.Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in otherpublic companies as at the year- 

end have been made by theDirectors. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports ofall 

laws applicable to the Company. 

The relevant details of the Board of Directors and their directorships as on 315tMarch, 2024 are 

given here under: 

SI No. | Name & Category of No. of other | No. of Committee | Directorships held in 

Director Directorshi | positions held in| other Listed Entities 

ps as_ on | other companies* and category of 
March 31, | Chairman | Member | Directorship 
2024 

1 Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain 10 No No - 

(Chairman & Managing 

Director and Promoter) 

2. Mr. Utkarsh Jain 12 No No - 
(Whole Time Director & 

Promoter) 

3. Mr. SauravUpadhyay 3 0 2 - 

(Independent Director) 

4. Mr. AshutoshDubey - 2 0 - 

(Independent Director) 

5. Ms. PriyaSingh - 0 2 - 

(Independent Director) 

6. Mr. Pratyaksh Jain# 1 No No - 

(Non-Executive Non 

Independent Director) 

e Mr. Mohak Jain & Mr.Utsav Jain ceased to be Non-executive Independent director of the 

Companyw.ef June 09, 2023. 

e Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain ceased to be Non-executive Independent director of the Company w.e/f. 

March 28, 2024. 

#Mr. Pratyaksh Jain was appointed as Non-Executive Non Independent Directorin the Board Meeting 

held on 14.02.2024 and thereafter shareholders approved their appointment in the duly convened 

Extra- Ordinary General Meeting held on 08.03.2024pursuant to new Regulation 17(1)(1C) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inserted by the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the 

corrigendum, w.e.f. 1.1.2022. 

*In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of 

only Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees in all public limited companies 

have been considered. 
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B. Other provisions as to Board and its Committees 

i. Details of Board Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 

The Company follows a methodized process of decision-making by the Board and its Committees. The 

meeting datesare usually finalized in accordance with a pre-determined meeting calendar for the year 

and consultation with allDirectors. All Agenda and explanatory notes fexceptfor price sensitive 

information, which are circulated separately before the meeting) are normally sent to the Directorswell 

in advance for the Meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. The Chairman & Managing Director 

of the Company decidesinclusion of any matter in the agenda for discussion in the meeting of the 

Board/Committees thereof. The Meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at Registered 

Office of the Companyat Delhi, during office hours. The Company is also complying with the Secretarial 

Standards issued by the Institute of CompanySecretaries of India in respect of Meetings of Board and 

Shareholders. 

During the financial year 2023-24, all the requisite information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placedbefore the Board for its consideration.During the 

financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors met 16 (Sixteen) times on the following dates 

FY 2023-24 Q1 FY 2023-24 Q2 FY 2023-24Q3 FY 2023-2404 

16-05-2023 17-07-2023 03-10-2023 15-01-2024 

24-05-2023 25-08-2023 27-10-2023 14-02-2024 

30-05-2023 06-09-2023 03-11-2023 28-03-2024 

12-06-2023 04-12-2023 

06-12-2023 

12-12-2023 

ii. Details of Directors’ attendance (physical presence or through video conferencing) at 

Board Meetings and AGM held during the financial year 2023-24. 

Name of Mr. Sunil | Mr. Mr. Manoj | Mr. Mr. Utsav | Mr. Mr. Ashutosh | Ms. Priya | Mr. 
Director Kumar Utkarsh | Kumar Jain Mohak Jain SauravUpa | Kumar Singh Pratyaksh 

Jain Jain (Independe | Jain (Indepen | dhyay Dubey (Independe | Jain (Non 

(Chairma | (Whole | nt (Indepen | dent (Independ | (Independen | ntDirector) | Executive 

n & | Time Director) ## | dent Director) | ent t Director) Director) # 
Managing | Director | # Director) | # Director) # 
Director) | ) # 

Present Yes Yes Yes NA NA Yes Yes Yes NA 

at the 38th 
AGM held on 

16.09.2023 

Presence at Board Meeting 

16-05-2023 Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - 

24-05-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes - 

30-05-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes - 

12-06-2023 Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes - 

17-07-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes No - 

25-08-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes - 

06-09-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes - 

03-10-2023 Yes Yes No - - Yes Yes No - 

27-10-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - No Yes Yes - 

03-11-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes - 

04-12-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes - 

06-12-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes - 

12-12-2023 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes No Yes - 

15-01-2024 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes No - 

14-02-2024 Yes Yes Yes - - Yes Yes Yes Yes 

28-03-2024 Yes Yes - - - No Yes Yes Yes 
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Board 
Meetings Held 

during 
tenure 

16 16 15 3 4 16 16 16 

Attendance 
16 16 15 3 3 14 15 13 

% of 
Attendance 

100 100 100 100 75 87.5 93.75 81.25 100 

# Mr. Mohak Jain & Mr. Utsav Jain ceased to be Non-executive Independent director of the Company w.e-f. June 09, 

2023. 

##Mr. Pratyaksh Jain, Non-executive Non Independent director was appointed in the Board Meeting held on 

14.02.2024and thereafter shareholders approved their appointment in the duly convened Extra- Ordinary General 

Meeting held on 08.03.2024. 

### Mr. Manoj Jain ceased to be Non-executive Independent director of the Company w.e.f. March 28, 2024. 

lii. Retirement by rotation at the ensuing 39%:AGM 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 125 of the Articles 

of Association of the Company, Mr. Utkarsh Jain, Director, shall retire by rotation at the 

ensuing 39thAnnual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re- 

appointment. 

iv. Inter-se relationship between Directors 

There is no inter-se relationship between the Directors as on March 31, 2024except between 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Utkarsh Jain, Whole time 

Director. None of the Non-Executive Director of the Company holds any shares in the 

Company. 

v. A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held onFebruary 14, 
2024, in compliance with theprovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, whichwas attended by all the Independent Directors of NECC. 

vi. Key Board skills, expertise, competencies and attributes: 

The NECC Board comprises of qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and 
expertise that allowthem to make effective contributions to the Board and its committees. 

As per amended SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following key skills, 

expertise, competencies and attributes to enable it to function effectively: 

Parameters of Directors’ qualifications 

Financial 

Management 

Planning, organizing, directing and controlling the financial activities which include 

mobilizationand utilization of funds, financial accounting and management control 

systems, taxplanning etc. 
Logistics & A significant background in technology and in-depth insight into the various 

Transportation | elements oftransportation services to customers. 
sector 
Risk Forecasting and evaluation of operational risk, credit risk, market risk, interest rate, 

Management liquidity, Identifying any potential threats that may occur during the investment/ 

financing process and mitigation of the same 

Leadership Extended leadership experience for establishing a clear vision and takingactions for 

achieving the organizational goals. 

Board practices 

and 

governance 

Service on a public listed company, the company Board to develop insightsabout 

maintaining board and management accountability, protecting shareholder 

interests andobserving appropriate governance practices. 
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Corporate 

Planning & 

Strategy 

Management activities that are used to set priorities focus energy and resources, 

strengthen operations, andensure that employees and other stakeholders are 

working towards common goals by establishingagreement on _ intended 

outcomes/results and assess & adjust the organization’s direction in responseto a 

changing environment. 

In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board member (as on March 

31, 2024) have been marked. However, theabsence of a mark against a member’s name does not 

necessarily mean the member does not possess the correspondingskill or expertise: 

Key qualifications of the Board 

Area of expertise 

N Financi | Logistics & | Risk Manageme | Leadershi | Board Corporate 
ame of . . . . 

Director al Transportation | Managem | nt skills p practices Planning 

Manage | sector ent and & 

ment governanc | Strategy 

e 
Mr. Sunil v v v v v v v 

Kumar Jain 

Mr. Utkarsh v v v v v v v 

Jain 
Mr. v v v v v 

SauravUpadh 

yay 
Mr. Ashutosh v v v v v v 

Kumar 

Ms. Priya v v v v v 
Singh 
Mr. v v v v v 

Pratyaksh 

Jain 

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors of NECC functions either as full Board, or through various Committees 

constituted to oversee specificareas of business operations and Corporate Governance. Each 

Committee of the Board is guided by its terms of reference,which defines the composition, scope and 

powers of the Committee. The Committees meet at regular intervals, focus on theirassigned areas and 

make informed decisions within the authority delegated to them. 

As on March 31, 2024, the Board had the following committees: 

Audit Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Right Issue Committee 

Minutes of Meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board, for information and 
noting in term of Articles of Association of the Company, Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings 
and other applicable statutory requirements 

1 

A
W
N
 

The 

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee 
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The Company has an Audit Committee in place, constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.The Audit 
Committeecarries out the role as per its terms of reference and reviews the information 
prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions. 

(i) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under 

e oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible review 

and monitor of auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

e recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
Company 

e approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors 

e reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report 
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

e matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 
included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013 

e changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management 

e significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

e compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

e disclosure of any related party transactions 

e modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report 

e reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 
the board for approval 

e reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness 
of audit processetc. 

e Carry out any other function as directed by the Board and/or mandated by any statutory 

authority through any notification, amendment or modification from time to time 

Due to resignation of Mr. Mohak Jain and Mr. Utsav Jain from the Board/ Committee(s) on 
09.06.2023, the Company is required to reconstitute the Audit Committee. Accordingly Board 
of Directors in its meeting held on September 06, 2023, has approved the reconstitution of 
Audit Committee. 

ii. As on March 31, 2024, the composition of the Audit Committee was as under: 

S. Name ofthe Members | Position Number of meetings 

No. in the Held during | Attended Percentage 
Committ | tenure of of 
ee Director attendance 

1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain* Chairman 8 7 87.5 

2. Mr. Mohak Jain*# Member 3 3 100 

3. Mr. Utsav Jain## Member 3 2 66.67 

4. Mr. AshutoshKumar Member 5 5 100 

Dubey 

5. Mr. SauravUpadhyay Member 5 3 60 

#MrManoj Kumar Jain, Chairman of Audit Committee has resigned w.e.f.March 28, 2024 who was 

present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 16 September, 2023, to 
answer shareholders’ queries. Accordingly, the Company is required to reconstitute the Audit 

Committee. Accordingly, Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 03, 2024, has approved the 

reconstitution of Audit Committee where Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Dubey was appointed as Chairman of 

the Committee who possess accounting and financial management expertise; and Ms. Priya Singh 
and Mr. SauravUpadhyaywere appointed as Members of the Committee. 
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The quorum for Audit Committee meeting shall either be two members or one third of the 
members of the Audit Committee, whichever is greater, with at least two Independent Directors 
present for the meeting. Further, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and representatives of 
Statutory Auditors are invited for the meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

iii. Meeting Details: 

During the financial year 2023-24, Eight (8) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on (i) May 16, 

2023;(ii) May 24, 2023;, (iii) May 30, 2023, (iv) July 17, 2023, (v) September 06, 2023 and (vi) 

October 27 , 2023 (vii)December 04, 2023 (viii) February 14, 2024. 

3.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE. 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

The Company has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

(i) The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

Primary responsibility of the Committee is to identify and nominate suitable candidates for Board 

membership and as members of Senior Management of the Company. The Committee also formulated 

policies relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of 

the Company. The Company is responsible: 

e Identification of persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board 

their appointment and/or removal; 

e Recommending desirable changes in the Board composition, size and diversity, committees 

structures and processes and other aspects of the Board’s functioning; 

e Assist the Board in ensuring that plans are in place fororderly succession for appointment to the 

Board &Senior Management. 

e formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a director & KMPs. 

e formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 

directors etc. 

e Formulation & supervision of the Remuneration Policyof the Company 

e Carry out any other function as directed by the Board and/or mandated by any statutory 

authority through any notification, amendment or modification from time to time 

(ii) Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

The Company has adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel. The policy has laid the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

Independence of Director. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Listing 

Regulations, the Board has carried out an Annual Performance Evaluation of its own performance and 

the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Board Governance, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and other committees. The policy lays down the criteria for 

evaluation of Independent Directors. The policy is available at website of the company at following 

web link: https://neccgroup.com:5000/pdf/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy.pdf 
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(iii) Composition and Attendance during the year 

Due to resignation of Mr. Mohak Jain and Mr. Utsav Jain from the Board/ Committee(s) on 
09.06.2023, the Company is required to reconstitute the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee.Accordingly Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 06, 2023, has 
approved the reconstitution of Nomination & Remuneration Committee where Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Jain was Chairman of the Committee and Mr. AshutoshKumar Dubey and Mr. SauravUpadhyay were 
appointed as Members of the Committee. 

As on March 31, 2024, the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was as under: 

S.No. | Name ofthe Members | Category & Position in the Number of meetings 
Committee Held during | Atten 

tenure of | ded 
Director 

1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain*# Chairman , Non-Executive 2 2 

Independent 

2. Mr. Mohak Jain*# Member , Non-Executive 0 0 

Independent 

3. Mr. Utsav Jain## Member , Non-Executive 0 0 

Independent 

4, Mr. AshutoshKumar Member, Non-Executive 2 2 

Dubey Independent 

5. Mr. SauravUpadhyay Member, Non-Executive 2 2 
Independent 

#MrManoj Kumar Jain, Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee has 

resigned w.e.f. March 28, 2024 who was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 16 September, 2023, to answer shareholders’ queries. Accordingly, the Company is 

required to reconstitute the Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee. Accordingly, 

Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 03, 2024, has approved the reconstitution of Committee 

where Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Dubey was appointed as Chairman of the Committee and Ms. Priya Singh 

and Mr. SauravUpadhyay were appointed as Members of the Committee 

(i) Meeting Details: 

The Members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 times onSeptember 06, 2023& 

February 14, 2024. 

(ii) Remuneration of Directors 

The Executive Directors are remunerated by way of salary, based upon the criteria laiddown by the 

Nomination and RemunerationCommittee. The Executive Directors are appointed for aperiod of 5 year 

wherein their remuneration limits are alsodefined within which the Board of Directors/ Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee has the power todecide the remuneration for each year.The 

remuneration paid to Whole Time Directors including the Chairman & Managing Director was as per 

the terms and conditions of their appointment. 

Remuneration of Non-executive and Independent Director 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors are remunerated by way ofsitting feefor attending the 

Board Meetings in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. None of the Non-Executive 

Directors & Independent Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

Company. 

During the financial year 2023-24, sitting fees is paid to Mr. SauravUpadhyay, Mr. Ashutosh Kumar 

Dubey and Ms. PriyaSingh, Independent Directors of the Company. 

None of the Directors has been issued any stock options by the Company during the year or any time 

in the past. Further, none of the Directors of the Company are in receipt of any Commission from the 

Company. 
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Details of Remuneration paid to Directors during FY 2023-24 (In Rs.) 

S. | Name Designation Salary Com Sitting No. of 
No (p-a) missi Fees equity 

on (p.a) shares 
Held 

1. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain | Chairman & 48,00,000 - - - 

Managing Director 

2. Mr. Utkarsh Jain Executive Director | 36,00,000 - - 7216416 

3. Mr. SauravUpadhyay | Independent - - 1,80,000 - 
Director 

4. Mr. Ashutosh Kumar | Independent - - 1,80,000 - 
Dubey Director 

5. Ms. Priya Singh Independent - - 1,80,000 - 
Director 

6. Mr. Pratyaksh Jain Non - - - - 

ExecutiveDirector 

(iii) Performance Evaluation Criteria of Independent Directors 

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors is determined by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and is based upon contribution and involvement of a director, commitment, 

integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of conduct and judgment. 

3.3 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

= 
The Company has a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in term of the provisions of Section 178(5) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 20 of the SEB] (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The 

Committee is responsible for resolving investor’s complaints pertaining to share transfers, non-receipt 

of annual reports, issue of duplicate share certificates, transmission of shares and other shareholder 

related queries, complaints etc. 

i. Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference of the Committee, inter-alia includes: 

1. Oversee and review all matters connected with the transfer of the Company’s securities. 

2. Approve issue of the Company’s duplicate share certificates and new certificates on 

split/consolidation/renewal etc. and approves transfer/transmission, dematerialization and 

rematerialization of equity shares in a timely manner. 

3. Consider, resolve and monitor redressal of investors’ /shareholders’ / security holders’ grievances 

related to transfer of securities, non-receipt of Annual Report etc. 

4. Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by 

any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable. 

Composition and Attendance during the year 

Due to resignation of Mr. Mohak Jain and Mr. Utsav Jain from the Board/ Committee(s) on 09.06.2023, 

the Company is required to reconstitute the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. Accordingly Board 

of Directors in its meeting held on September 06, 2023, has approved the reconstitution of 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.Mr.Manoj Kumar Jain was Chairman of the Committee and Mr. 

Ashutosh Kumar Dubeyand Mr. SauravUpadhyay were appointed as Members of the Committee 

Thereafter, MrManoj Kumar Jain, Chairman of the Committee has resigned w.e.f. March 28, 2024 who 

was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 16 September, 2023, to 
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answer shareholders’ queries. Accordingly, the Company is required to reconstitute the Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee. Accordingly, Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 03, 2024, has 

approved the reconstitution of Committee where Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Dubey was appointed as 

Chairman of the Committee and Ms. Priya Singh and Mr. SauravUpadhyay were appointed as Members 

of the Committee 

As on March 31, 2024, the composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was as under: 

S.No. | Name ofthe Members | Category & Position in the Number of meetings 
Committee Held during | Atten 

tenure of | ded 
Director 

1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain? | Chairman, Non-Executive 4 3 
Independent 

2. Mr. Mohak Jain*# Member , Non-Executive 1 1 

Independent 

3. Mr. Utsav Jain## Member , Non-Executive 1 1 

Independent 

4, Mr. AshutoshKumar Member, Non-Executive 3 3 

Dubey Independent 

5. Mr. SauravUpadhyay Member, Non-Executive 3 2 
Independent 

#MrManoj Kumar Jain, Chairman of Audit Committee has resigned w.e.f March 28, 2024 

ii. Meeting Details: 

The Members of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 4 times on (i) May 16, 2023; (ii) 

September 06, 2023;, (iii) October 27, 2023, (iv) February 14, 2024to review the status of pendency 

of Shareholders/investors grievances. 

iii. Status of Shareholders/Investors Grievances 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has launched a new version of SCORES 
strengthens the investor complaint redress mechanism in the securities market by making the 
process more efficient through auto-routing, auto-escalation, monitoring by the ‘Designated 
Bodies and reduction of timelines. The new SCORES system has also been made more 
userFriendly.SCORES is an online system where investors in securities market can lodge 
their 
complaints through web URLand an App. 

The website URL for SCORES 2.0 from April 01, 2024 is https:// scores.sebi.gov.in 

The salient features of SCORES 2.0 are as follows: 
i. Reduced and uniform timelines for redressal of investor complaints across the Securities 

Market i.e. 21 Calendar days from date of receipt of complaint. 
ii, Introduction of auto-routing of complaints to the concerned regulated entity so as to eliminate 

time lapses, ifany, in the flow of complaints. 
iii. Monitoring of the timely redressal of the investors’ complaints by the ‘Designated 

Bodies’. 
iv. Integration with KYC Registration Agency database for easy registration of the investor on to 

SCORES 

The Company has been attending to all investor grievances expeditiously and promptly. Status of 

Shareholders/ Investors Grievances pursuant to Regulation 13(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 for the financial year 2023-24, is as follows: 

Particulars Number of 

Complaints 

Pending at the beginning of the financial year Nil 

Received during the financial year 3 

Disposed during the financial year 3 
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| Remaining unresolved as on March 31, 2024 | Nil | 

3.4 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

The CSR Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made under. 

i. Terms of Reference 

The role of CSR Committee is according to Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and to 

do any other activity delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Committee is to, inter-alia 

includes: 

1. to formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall 

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013; 

2. to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; 

3. to recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities 

4. To recommend/review CSR projects/programmes/proposals, falling within the purview of 

Schedule VII of theCompanies Act, 2013; 

5. to institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects / 

programmes / activities undertaken by the Company; 

6. to periodically submit the reports to the Board of Directors for their information, consideration 

and necessary directions etc. 

7. Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by 

any statutory notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable. 

ii. Composition and Attendance during the year 

Due to resignation of Mr. Utsav Jain from the Board/ Committee(s) on 09.06.2023, the Company is 

required to reconstitute the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. Accordingly Board of 

Directors in its meeting held on September 06, 2023, has approved the reconstitution of Corporate 

Social Responsibility Committee. Ms. Priya Singhwas appointed as Member of the Committee 

During the financial year 2023-24, the “Corporate Social Responsibility Committee” comprised of the 

following Members: 

Ss. Name of Member Category & Position in the Number of meetings 

No. Committee Held during Attended 

tenure of Director 

1. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain Chairman & Executive Director 2 2 

2. Mr. Utsav Jain* Member & Independent Director 1 1 

3. Mr. Utkarsh Jain Member & Executive Director 2 2 

4. MsPriya Singh Member & Independent Director 1 1 

5. Mr. ShyamLal Yadav Executive Member 2 2 

6. Mr. Vinod Nair Executive Member 2 2 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain is the Chairman of the Committee and the Company Secretary of the Company 

acts as the Secretary of the Committee.The details of the CSR initiatives as per the CSR Policy of the 

Company forms part of the CSR Section of thisAnnual Report. 

iii. Meeting Details: 

The Members of CSR Committee met 2 times on (i) May 16, 2023; and (ii) September 06, 2024



GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

The details of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are given below and special 

resolution passed: 

Financial Date Time Venue Special Resolutions passed 
Year 

2022-23 | September | 12:30 | Through Video | No Special Resolution was passed. 
16, 2023 P.M. | Conferencing 

/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(VC/OAVM) 
2021-22 | September | 12.00 | Through Video | No Special Resolution was passed. 

30, 2022 Noon | Conferencing 

/Other Audio 

Visual Means 
(VC/OAVM) 

2020-21 | September | 12:30 | Through Video | 1. To consider & approve re-appointment of Mr. 

29, 2021 P.M. | Conferencing Sunil Kumar Jain (DIN: 00010695) as Managing 

/Other Audio |} Director of theCompany for five consecutive 

Visual Means | years. 

(VC/OAVM) 2.To consider & approve re-appointment of Mr. 

Utkarsh Jain (DIN: 05271884) as Whole Time 

Director of the Company. 

3.To Consider & approve adoption of new set of 

Memorandum of Association as per Companies 

Act, 2013. 
4.To Consider & approve adoption of new set of 

Article of Association as per Companies Act, 

2013. 

The details of Extra- General Meetings of the Company aregiven below: 

Financial Date Time Venue Special Resolutions passed 
Year 

2023-24 April 18, 12:00 | Through Video | 1.Appointment of Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Dubey 

2023 Noon | Conferencing (DIN: 07621637) as Director of the Company 

/Other Audio | (non- executive & independent) 

Visual Means | 2. Appointment of Mr. SauravUpadhyay (DIN: 

(VC/OAVM) 05350001) as Director of the Company (non- 

executive & independent) 

3. Appointment of Ms. Priya Singh (DIN: 

08727539) as Director of the Company (non- 

executive & independent) 

2023-24 | March 08, 1:00 | Through Video | 1. Issue of equity shares/ convertible equity 

2024 P.M | Conferencing warrants on preferential basis to promoter and 

/Other Audio | to identified non promoter person. 
Visual Means 

(VC/OAVM) 2.Appointment of Mr. Pratyaksh Jain 

(DIN:09205865) as Additional Director of the 

Company (Non- Executive) 

During the financial year 2023-24, postal ballot process was conducted and following special 
resolution was passed through postal ballot. 

Financial | CommencementTime Special Resolutions passed 
Year 

2023-24 | The e-voting period commences from | Alteration in the object for utilization of funds out 
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9.00 a.m. (IST) on December 07, of the net proceeds of the rights issue of equity 

2023, and ends at 5.00 p.m. (IST) on | shares of the company by modifying the objects 

January 05, 2024 of issue as stated in the letter of offer dated May 

24, 2023 

Pursuant to the MCA latest Circular dated 25th September,2023 read with 28ttDecember 
2022,5th May, 2022 and 5th May, 2020 circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA Circulars”),the 39%Annual General Meeting of NECC Ltd. is being held through Video 
Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means. The Company will provide facility to shareholdersto 
attend the said AGM electronically and also enable shareholders to exercise their right to vote 
through electronic means at the said AGM. Details regarding participation in the said AGM and 
other relevant information is appearing in the Notice of the 39*AGM of the Company. 

5. SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 
The Companies Act, 2013 permits companies to send documents like Notice of Annual General 

Meeting, Annual Report and other documents through electronic means to its members at their 

registered email addresses, besides sending the same in physical form. 

In line with the MCA Circulars referred above, the Notice of the 39AGM along with Annual 
Report for the financial year 2023-24would be sent by e-mail to all members, whose e-mail IDs 
are registered with the Company. 

The Company had published advertisements in newspapers, to encourage shareholders holding 
shares in physical and electronic form to register/update their email IDs for receiving the Annual 
Report for the financial year 2023-24. Further, theCompany had also sent SMS to the 
shareholders whose Mobile Numbers were registered with the concerned Depository, 
forupdation of e-mail IDs. Despite the above efforts, those shareholders who have still not been 
able to update their e-mail IDs, may follow the process mentioned in the Notice of the 39tAGM, 
for registration of e-mail ID and procuring User ID & Passwordfor e-voting at the ensuing AGM of 
the Company. 

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an 

arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year and 

none of the transaction was in conflict with the interest of the Company. The transactions with related 

parties are included in the Notes to Accounts as per applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013.The 

particulars of Related Party Transactions aregiven in form AOC-2 annexed to the Board’s Report.The 

Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s 

website. The web-link is given below: 

7. DISCLOSURES 
(i) The Company has complied with all the requirements of Listing Regulations, the Companies Act, 

2013, applicable Secretarial Standards and other statutory authorities on all matters relating to 

the capital market during the past, including the preceding three years. following penalties or 

structures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other 

statutory authorities relating to the above. 

Fines Levied by BSE & NSE | Regulation 18(1) , Regulation | Fine of Rs 6000 + Rs 1080(GST) 

19(1)/19(2) & Regulation } under each Regulation. 

20(2)/(2A) 

(ii) As required under statutory provisions, all returns /reports were filed within stipulated time with 

stock exchanges/ other authorities. 

(iii) The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 17 to 27of Listing Regulations, as 

amended from time to time, relating to Board,Committees and Corporate Governance as amended 

from time to time and maintaining & updating the Website of the Company as required 
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underRegulation 46 of Listing Regulations.The Company has also complied with the disclosure 

requirements underCorporate Governance Report as per Part C of Schedule V of the 

ListingRegulations. 

Further, in compliance of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, the Companyhas inter-alia 

disclosed the information relating to details of business of theCompany, terms and conditions of 

appointment of Independent Directors,composition of various committees of Board of Directors, 

Code of BusinessConduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management on NECC’s 

website at www.neccgroup.com. 

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy, Policy on dealing with Related 

Party transactions, details of familiarizationprogramme imparted to Independent Directors and 

Policy for determination of materiality of events for disclosure to the stockexchanges, etc. are also 

available on NECC’s website at www.neccgroup.com.The Company affirms that a Whistle Blower 

Policy/ Vigil Mechanism is in place and no person has been denied access to theCompetent 

Authority. 

(iv) The Company has laid down the procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and 

minimization. The Board of Directors of the Company reviews the procedures to ensure that the 

integrated risks are managed through a properly defined framework. 

(v) The Company has not entered into any material, financial or commercial transactions with the 

Directors or the Management or their relatives or the companies and firms, etc., in which they are 

either directly or through their relatives interested as Directors and/or Partners. 

(vi) All members of Senior Management have made disclosures to the Board relating to all material, 

financial and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a 

potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large (e.g. dealing in Company shares, 

commercial dealings with bodies which have shareholding of management and their relatives etc.) 

and there was no such instance of conflict for financial year 2023-24. 

(vii) There were no materially significant transactions with related parties ie. Promoters, Directors or 

the management, conflicting with the Company’s interest. The Independent Directors do not hold 

any equity shares of the Company.. 

(viii)The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Statement of changes in equity and Cash Flow 

Statement for the financial year 2023-24 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (“Ind AS”), as amended, and other 

accounting principlesgenerally accepted in India. 

(ix) The disclosures in terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013 forms part of the Board’s report. 

(x) There was no instance during FY 2023-24, where the Board ofDirectors did not accept any 

recommendation of any Committee of the Board. 

(xi) The Company has adopted all mandatory items and some of the non-mandatory items on 

Corporate Governance. The statusof non-mandatory requirements pertaining to Corporate 
Governance section of Listing Regulations is as follows: 

e The Board: The Company is headed by an Executive Chairman. 

e Shareholder Rights: The Company is making available to the shareholders / investors all 

information timely, to enable them to be sufficiently informed of the major decisions of the 

Company. 

e Audit Qualifications: There are audit qualifications pertaining to financial year 2023-24. 

e Separate posts of Chairman and CEO - There is no separate post of Chairman and CEO. The role 

of CEO is being performed by Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

e Reporting of Internal Auditor- The internal auditor of the Company is invited to the Meetingsof 

the Audit Committee and directly report all their observations to the Audit Committee. 

(xii) There are audit qualifications by the Statutory Auditors in their report pertaining to financial year 

2023-24 which are as follows: 

1. The Company has not provided provision for doubtful debts. 

2. The Company has not recognized right to use assets of leased property. 

3. The Debit & credit balances are subject to confirmation. 

Further, theCompany has informed the Stock Exchanges that the Statutory Auditors have furnished 

Audit Report on Standalone Financial Results with modified opinion, in line with the provisions of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

(xiii) The Company has not issued any Stock Options/ESOPs during the financial year 2023-24. 
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8. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 

NECC has a “Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management”, which is a 

comprehensivecode applicable to all the Directors, Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel 

of the Company. The said Code was duly amended after the introduction of Companies Act, 2013 and 

SEBI (ListingObligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, in supersession of the earlier 

Code of Conduct. 

A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company at 

hittps://neccgroup.com:5000/pdf/Code-of-Conduct.pdfBased on the affirmation received from the 

Board Members and SeniorManagement Personnel, a declaration regarding Compliance of Code of 

Conduct from Chairman andManaging Director of the Company is as under: 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015,All Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the 

“Code of Conductfor Board Members and Senior Managementof the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024. 

Place: Delhi 

Date:07.09.2024 
Sd/- 

(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695 

9. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place, in terms of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 

made thereunder and Listing Regulations. The Whistle Blower Policy enables Directors/ Employees of 

NECC to raise concerns regarding any alleged malpractice or wrong doing, which could affect the 

business or reputation of the Company. The complaint can be made to the Competent Authority in the 

manner prescribed under the Policy. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the 

Company. 

A declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, that no person has been 
denied access to the Competent Authority under the Whistle Blower Policy during the financial 
year 2023-24 and necessary system has been put in place toprovide protection to the 
complainant, wherever required, is as under: 

ANNUAL AFFIRMATION IN TERMS OF WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY OF THE COMPANY 

During the financial year 2023-24, no person has been denied access to the Competent Authority and 

necessary systemhas been put in place, to provide protection to the complainant, wherever required. 

Place: Delhi 

Date: 07.09.2024 

Sd/- 

(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695 

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
(i) Financial Results 

The Company’s Quarterly/Half-Yearly/Annual Results are intimated to stock exchanges and 

published within 48 hours of the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they are 

considered in financial and national newspapers like Financial Express (English) and Jansatta 
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(Hindi) All Editions. These results and all other announcements are also made available on 

Company’s website at www.neccgroup.com. 

(ii) Website 

The ‘Investors Relation’ section on the website of the Company contains all the relevant 

information pertinent to the shareholders ie. financial results, annual reports, shareholding 

patterns, official news releases, Notices and other general information about the Company. 

11. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE 
The certificate as required pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations is furnished by the 

Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company to the Board of Directors of the 

Company with respect to accuracy of financial statements and adequacy of internal controls. 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION. 

1. Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2023-24 
Pursuant to the Circular(s) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI, the Annual 
General Meeting of the Shareholders will be held this year through electronic mode on the 
following day, date & time:- 

Day and Date Time Venue 

Monday , September30, | 1.00P.M. | The Company is conducting meeting through VC/ 

2024 OAVM pursuant to the latest MCA _ General 
Circularbeing General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 
25th September,2023 wherein Companies are 
allowed to 
conduct the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through 
VideoConferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM) till30th September, 2024, and thus 
venue requirements are not applicable for this AGM. 

For details please refer to the Notice of this AGM 

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,particulars of Directors seeking 

appointment/ re-appointment atthis AGM are given in the Notice of this AGM. 

2. Financial Calendar 

The financial year of the Company starts from the 1s¢ day of April and ends on 31st day of March of next 

year. 

Particulars Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2024-2025 

Accounting Period April 1, 2023 to March 31, | April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

2024 

1st Quarter August 14, | 1st Quarter Announcement 

2023 within 45 days 
2nd Quarter October 27, | 2nd Quarter from the end 

2023 of quarter or 

3rd Quarter February 14, | 3rd Quarter as 

2024 prescribed 

under 

statutory 
Provisions. 

4th Quarter & | May 30, | 4th Quarter & | Announcement 

Annual 2024 Annual within 60 days 
Financial Financial from the end 

Results Results of the financial 

year or. as 
prescribed 
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under 

statutory 
provisions 

Annual General Meeting September 30, 2024 August/September, 2025 

3. Listing of Equity Shares 

Equity shares of NECC are listed on the following Stock Exchanges: 

Name & Address of the | Scrip Address ISIN Number For 
Stock Exchanges Code NSDL /CDSL 

(Dematerialized 
Shares) 

National Stock | NECCLTD | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block 

Exchange of India G, BandraKurlaComplex, 

Limited (NSE) Bandra (E), Mumbai - 
400051 INE553C01016 

BSE Limited 534615 PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai-4000 

01 

4. Market price data for the financial year 2023-24 

Market Price data- the monthly high and low prices of the Company’s shares at BSE and NSE for 

the financial year 2023-24 are as follows: 

Monthly Performance of NECC share Movement of BSE SENSEX 
at BSE 

Month High Low Close High Low Close 

(in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs) 

April, 2023 22.79 17.39 21.48 61,209.46 58,793.08 61,112.44 

May, 2023 23.50 19.60 21.20 63,036.12 61,002.17 62,622.24 

June, 2023 21.74 18.20 19,34 64,768.58 62,359.14 64,718.56 

July, 2023 20.89 18.80 19.04 67,619.17 64,836.16 66,527.67 

August, 2023 23.40 18.40 22.63 66,658.12 64,723.63 64,831.41 

September, 2023 24.73 19,93 22.93 67,927.23 64,818.37 65,828.41 

66,592.16 
October, 2023 , coe 25.43 9.22 | 24.16 63,092.98 63,874.93 
November, 2023 33.90 22.41 31.77 67,069.89 63,550.46 66,988.44 

December, 2023 37.15 28.75 28.75 72,484.34 67,149.07 72,240.26 

January, 2024 31.31 27.62 29.36 73,427.59 70,001.60 71,752.11 

February, 2024 35.66 28.65 32.04 73,413.93 70,809.84 72,500.30 

March, 2024 34.80 22.00 22.71 74,245.17 71,674.42 73,651.35 

Monthly Performance of NECC share at NSE 

Month High Low Close 
(in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs) 

April, 2023 
22.70 17.05 21.40 

May, 2023 23.30 19.50 21.20 
June, 2023 21.65 18.30 19.35 

July, 2023 20.80 18.70 18.85 
August, 2023 23.50 18.05 22.60 

September, 2023 24.30 19.90 23.00 

October, 2023 24.90 19.10 24.20 

November, 2023 34.00 22.35 31.60 

December, 2023 37.40 28.65 28.65 

January, 2024 31.30 27.55 29.75 
February, 2024 35.70 28.45 32.00 

March, 2024 35.20 22.00 22.75 



5. Share Transfer System 

As per directives issued by the SEBI, it is mandatory for listedcompanies to issue securities in demat 

mode only whileprocessing any investor service requests viz. issuance of duplicateshare certificates, 

exchange/subdivision/ split/consolidation ofsecurities, transmission/ transposition of securities and 

claim fromSuspense Escrow Demat Account. SEBI vide its circular dated 25th January 2022, has 

clarified that listed entities/ RTAs shall issue a Letter of Confirmation in lieu of the share certificate 

while processing any of the aforesaid investor service requests. 

Simplified Norms for processing Investor Service Requests 

SEBI, vide its Circular dated 3rd November 2021, as amended from time to time, had made it 

mandatory for holders of physical securities to furnish PAN, KYC and Nomination/Optout of 

Nomination details to avail any investor service. The timeline provided by SEBI to furnish/ update the 

above details is 30th September 2023. Folios wherein any one of the above mentioned details are not 

registered by 1stOctober 2023, shall be frozen. However, SEBI vide circular no. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated 17th November, 2023, has decided todo 

away with the above provisions. 

6. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report 

A qualified practicing Company Secretary, M/s Ashish Kumar Friends & Co., Delhi carries out quarterly 

audit toreconcile the total admitted equity share capital with NSDL and CDSLand the total issued and 

listed equity share capital and the same was submitted to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated 

time. 

7. Distribution of Shareholding 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

NOMINAL VALUE OF EACH SHARE - RS. 10/- 

NO OF SH % TO | SHARE HOLDING OF | NO OF | AMOUNT IN| % TO 

HOLDERS TOTAL | NOMINAL VALUE OF | SHARE RS TOTAL 

RS 

25709 78.167 | 1TO 5000 3608306 36083060 3.790 

3407 10.359 | 5001 TO 10000 2886037 28860370 3.031 

1775 5.397 |_ 10001 TO 20000 2765786 27657860 2.905 

699 2.125 | 20001 TO 30000 1821958 18219580 1.913 

308 0.936 | 30001 TO 40000 1110161 11101610 1.166 

280 0.851 | 40001 TO 50000 1350138 13501380 1.418 

398 1.210 | 50001 TO 100000 3060705 30607050 3.214 

314 0.955 | 100001 AND ABOVE 78615037 786150370 82.563 

32890 100.00 | TOTAL 95218128 952181280 100.00 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

Ss. Category of Shareholders No. of | No. of Shares | Percentage 

No. Shareholders 

1 Promoter & Promoter Group* 5 50236209 52.67 

2 Foreign Portfolio Investors 2 145810 0.15 

3 Individual 32787 25697871 26.94 

4 Non resident Indians 162 461996 0.48 

5 Clearing Members 12 43231 0.05 

6 Bodies Corporate 113 18787821 19.7 
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7 Trust 1 2000 0.00 

Total 33082 95374938 100 

*Statement showing Shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and 

Promoter Group” as on March 31, 2024 

S. Name of Promoter Total Shares held 

No. Number Percentage (%) 

1. Vanya Jain 9537173 10 

2. Utkarsh Jain 7216416 7.57 

3. Sunil Kumar Jain 0 0 

4. NECC Securities Private Limited 14548072 15.25 

5. NECC Automobiles Private Limited 15834888 16.6 

6. Suvi Developers Private Limited 3099660 3.25 

8. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 

As on 31stMarch, 2024, 9,52,43,108 Equity Shares representing 99.86% of the total Equity Share 
capital of the Company, were held indematerialized form with National Securities Depository Ltd. 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.(CDSL). 

National Securities Depository Limited 

Trade World, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills 

Compound SenapathiBapatMarg, Lower Parel, 

Mumbai-400 013 

Tel: +91-22-2499 4200 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

Marathon Futurex, A-Wing, 25th Floor 

NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 
Mumbai-400013 
Tel: +91-22-2305 

Toll free Number: 1800 222 990 

E-mail ID: relations@nsdl.co.in, 

info@nsdl.co.in 

Website: www.nsdl.co.in 

8640/8624/8639/8642 /8663 
Toll free Number: 1800 22 5533 

E-mail ID: helpdesk@cdslindia.com, 
complaints@cdslindia.com 
Website: www.cdslindia.com 

Further, Shareholders who continue to hold shares in Physical form are advised to dematerialize their 

shares at the earlier. As mandated by SEBI the requests for effecting transfer of listed securities shall 

not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository 

participant. Members holding shares in physical mode are also required to submit their Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) and bank account along with the cancelled cheque bearing the name 

ofshareholder or copy of bank passbook / statement attested by Bank to the Company / RTA, if not 

registered with the Company, as mandated by SEBI. 

The details of number of shares held in dematerialized and physical form as on March 31, 2024 was as 

under: 

Category | %to Number of 

Caattal Shares Physical, 0.14 

NSDL 62.05 | 59180915 
CDSL 3781 | 36062193 
Physical 0.14 131830 

Total 95374938 
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9. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion dates and 

likely impact on equity, 

No GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments have been issued by the Company. 

10. Annual Listing fees to Stock Exchanges 
The Company has paid Annual Listing Fees for the financial year 2023-24 to National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limitedin relation to its listed securities on stipulated time. 

11. Annual Custodial Fees to Depositories 

The Company has timely paid the annual custodian fee for financial year 2023-24 

to NSDL and CDSL. 

12. Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities 

The Company does not hedge foreign exchange risk as the exposure is not material. 

13.Statutory Auditor Fees 
The total fees paid by the Company to statutory auditors for all the services during the financial 
year 2023-24isRs.5 Lakhs. 

14, Plant Locations 

As a Company is a Transport & Logistics Company, it does not have any plant unit. However, apart 

from Registered and Corporate Office, the Company has 300+ Branch offices including Branch Offices 

etc, 

15. Address for Communication/Correspondence 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

NECC House, 9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, Azad Market, Delhi-110006 

Ph: 011-23517516-19, Fax: 011-23527700 

Email ID: cs@neccgroup.com 

Website: www.neccgroup.com 

Company Secretary &Compliance Officer 

Ms. MamtaBisht 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

NECC House, 9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, Azad Market, Delhi-110006, 

Ph: 011-23517516-19, Fax: 011-23527700 
Email ID: cs@neccgroup.com 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

MAS Services Limited 

T-34, II™4 Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 

Tel: +91-11-2638 7281/82/83, Fax: +91-11-2638 7384 

E-mail: info@masserv.com, Website: www.masserv.com 

Shareholders are requested to quote their Folio No./ DP ID & Client ID, e-mail address, telephone 

number and full address while corresponding with the Company and its RTA. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

Sd/- 
(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00010695



CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and clause (i) of Point (10) of Para C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To, 

The Members 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

NECC House, 9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, 

Azad Market, Delhi-110006 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns maintained by the Company and the 

disclosures received from theDirectors of NECC Limited bearing CIN: L51909DL1984PLC019485 and 

havingits Registered Office at NECC House, 9062/47, Ram Bagh Road, Azad Market, Delhi-110006 

(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’),produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 

issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read withclause (i) of Point (10) of Para C 

of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including Director 

Identification Number (DIN)status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as stated below, for the financial year ending on March 31,2024 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the 

Securities andExchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 

Authority: 

Sl. Name of Director Director Identification 

No. Number (DIN) 

1 Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain 00010695 

2 Mr. Utkarsh Jain 05271884 

3 Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Dubey 07621637 

4 Mr. SauravUpadhyay 05350001 

5 Ms. Priya Singh 08727539 

6 Mr. Prataksh Jain(Appointed w.ef 14/02/2024) 09205865 

7 Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain (Resigned on 28/03/2024) 01887411 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

same based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assuranceas to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

For A.K. FRIENDS & CO. 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 07, 2024 

UDIN : F005129F001168821 Sd/- 

Peer review certificate no. 2786/2022 ASHISH KUMAR FRIENDS 

Proprietor 

C.P.No.: 4056 

Membership No.: FCS 5129 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY CEO /CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015) 

The Board of Directors 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, 

certify that: 

i. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flowstatement for the year ended 31st March, 

2024 and that to the bestof our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

a. these statements do not contain any materially untruestatement or omit any material fact or 

contain statementsthat might be misleading; 

b. these statements together present a true and fair view ofthe Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existingaccounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

ii. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, notransactions have been entered into 

by the Company during theyear, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’scode of 

conduct. 

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internalcontrols for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluatedthe effectiveness of internal control systems of the Companypertaining to 

financial reporting of the Company and havedisclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, 

deficienciesin the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which weare aware and the 

steps we have taken or propose to take to rectifythese deficiencies. 

iii. = 

iv. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

a) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(b) significant changes,if any, in accounting policies during the year; andthat the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

c) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement, 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in the 

Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

Place: Delhi Sd/- Sd/- 

Date: September 07, 2024 Sunil Kumar Jain ShyamLal Yadav 

(Chairman & Managing Director) (CFO & VP) 

DIN: 00010695 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 

The Members 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the North Eastern Carrying 

Corporation Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in Regulations 17 

to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations). 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 

Our examination has beenlimited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by 

the Company, for ensuring the compliance with theconditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither 

an audit nor an expression of opinion of financial statements of the Company. 

In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to me, 

I certify that the Company has complied with theconditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

the SEBI ListingRegulations for the year ended on March 31, 2024. 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficiency oreffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

For A.K. FRIENDS & CO. 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 07 , 2024 

UDIN : FO05129F001168918 

Peer review certificate no. 2786/2022 Sd/- 

ASHISH KUMAR FRIENDS 
Proprietor 

C.P. No.: 4056 
Membership No.: FCS 5129 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with the Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

The management of the Company is pleased to present its report on the business environment & industry 

scenario, industry risks, opportunities and the Company’s financial & operational performance during the - 

financial year 2023-24 

In 2023, India’s presidency of the G20—a forum uniting leading and emerging economies to address various 

global challenges, including sustainable economic development, security, and energy transition. The New 

Delhi G20 Leaders’ Declaration, comprising 83 paragraphs passed unanimously and marked a significant 

diplomatic triumph for India. Where geopolitical conflicts, rising inflation, energy costs, economic 

disruptions, poverty, inequality and climate change were identified as some of the glaring issues facing the 

world, India successfully advocated for trade and investment as engines for inclusive growth and prosperity. 

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT 

> GLOBAL BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

The global economy remains remarkably resilient during the review period, with growth holding steady as 

inflation returns to target. Staring from early 2023, the journey has been eventful, starting with Russian- 

Ukraine war that triggered a global energy and food crisis and a considerable surge in inflation, followed by a 

globally synchronized monetary policy tightening and tension in middleeast. Decisive monetary policy 

actions, as well as improved monetary policy frameworks, especially in emerging market economies, have 

helped anchor inflation expectations. 

According to April, 2024, IMF World Economic Outlook report, global growth is projected at 3.2% in 2023 and 

is forecasted to maintain the same pace through 2024 and 2025. For advanced economies, growth is 

projected to rise slightly from 1.6% in 2023 to 1.7% in 0032024 and 1.8% in 2025, with the increase mainly 

reflecting a recovery in the euro area from low growth in 2023. In emerging market and developing 

economies, growth is expected to be moderated from 4.3% in 2023 to stable at 4.2% in 2024 and 2025, witha 

moderation in emerging and developing Asia offset mainly by rising growth for economies in the Middle East 

and Central Asia and for sub-Saharan Africa. 

IMF: World Economic outlook projections: 

Global Growth Projections 

2023 2024 2025 
World 3.2 3.2 3.2 
1. Advanced Economies (AE) 1.6 1.7 1.8 

US 2.5 2.7 2.0 
EU Area 0.4 0.8 1.5 
UK 0.1 0.5 15 
Japan 19 0.9 1.0 

2. Emerging Market and Development | 4.3 4.2 4.2 

Economies 

India 7.8 6.8 6.5 
China 5.2 4.6 4.1 
Brazil 2.9 2.2 2.13.4 
Sub-Saharan Africa 3.4 3.8 4.0 

Middle East and Central Asia 19 2.8 4.2 
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Growth and inflation 
Output gaps are closing, and inflation is expected to continue 
its downward trend. 

Output gaps Global headline inflation 
(percent of potential GDP) (percent; y/y) 

mus —_—= Actual inflation —— Apr 2023 

@ Euro area — Oct 2023 — Jan 2024 

@ China Apr 2024 — Jul 2024 

1 8 

i=]
 

o 

1 4 

Z 2 

= Oo 

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2022 2023 2024 2025 

Sources: IMF, Werld Economie Qutieole and IMF staff calculations. 
Note: Inflation is a PPP-weighted average and excludes Argentina and Turkiye IMF 

As per the Global Trade Outlook and Statistics: October 2023Update report by the World Trade Organization, 

world tradegrowth was affected by the lingering impacts of the restrictions in China, the resulting disruptions 

of the global supply chainnetworks, the geopolitical conflicts and resulting hike in crudeand natural gas 

prices, especially across Europe. However, theworld trade merchandize volume growth estimate is 

expectedto pick up pace in 2024 and grow at 3.3%. This opens up manymore avenues of economic growth 

and development acrossvarious developed and emerging economies. 

GROWTH PROJECTIONS 

3.1 3.1 3.2 

1.6 4.5 1.8 

2023 2024 2025 2023 2024 2025 

INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND 

> INDIAN BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT 
In recent years, the Indian economy has experienced remarkable growth, positioning itself as the world's 

fifth-largest with a GDP of about $4 trillion as per IMF, driven by sweeping business reforms, technological 

advancements and a -flourishing entrepreneurial landscape. Government initiatives have been instrumental 

in fostering macroeconomic stability and creating an environment conducive to business growth. The 

Government's proactive stance towards implementing reforms has focused on improving the business 

environment, attracting foreign investments and fostering the growth of start-ups, thus cementing India's 

status as a leading global economic force. 
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POWERED BY MFG, CONST & MINING 
Annual GDP Growth Over Years Key Drivers Of Growth 

Growth (9%) i i row 83 91 » Manufacturing estimated 
to grow by 6.5% 

» Construction seen 
expanding by 10.7% 

> Mining set to grow by 8.1% 

> Industry to grow 7.9% 
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According to Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the country's GDP growth remained robust by strong aggregate 

demand. Fixed investment firmed up at a robust pace with the government’s continued thrust on 

infrastructure building. Private corporate investment has also gained vitality. In the financial year 2023-24, 

the real GDP was projected to have grown by 7.6% compared to 7% in the previous financial year 2022-23. 

On the supply side, manufacturing activity continued to gain during the financial year, supported by lower 

commodity prices, diversifying global supply chains and easing logistic costs due to improving infrastructure. 

Buoyancy in construction activity contributed to services sector momentum. Real Gross Value Added (GVA) 

posted a growth of 6.9% growth in the financial year 2023-24. Looking ahead to the financial year 2024-25, 

considering the headwinds from geopolitical tensions, rising geo-economics fragmentations, volatility in 

global commodity prices and escalation of Red Sea disruptions, the real GDP is projected at around 7%. 

Since last financial year, headline CPI in-flation has been gradually declining, prospecting a positive indication 

for the economy. In recent times, In-flation had seen its peak of 7.8% in April, 2022, thereby declined to 5.7% 

in March, 2023 and further eased to 4.9 % in March, 2024 during this financial year 
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LOGISTICS INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

> GLOBAL 

The global logistics industry is estimated to exceed US$ 15.79Tn by FY 2028 and US$ 18.23 Tn by 2030. The 

changing lifestyleand preferences of consumers, the proliferation of B2B andB2C e-commerce platforms and 

the globalization of tradeand commerce are the principal driving factors behind thisphenomenal growth. 
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This industry is on the cusp of transformation as the adventof state-of-the-art technologies such as the 

Internet of Things(IoT), Machine Learning (ML), and Artificial Intelligence (Al) areset to redefine business 

functions such as route optimization, warehouse management and inventory turnaround so asto reduce the 

costs drastically and increase the productivityexponentially. 

GLOBAL LOGISTICS MARKET marci 
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> LOGISTICS IN INDIA 

India has set its foot on this path to become the economic, political and military superpower in the 21% 

century. Rightfully, the CentralGovernment is directing sufficient measures for framing and implementing the 

correct policy initiatives in this direction. The combinedforce of government impetus, technology adoption 

and automation herald a decade of transformation and robust growth ahead forthe Indian logistics industry 

which is estimated to grow at an impressive CAGR of around 7.85% from the present US$ 282.3 Bn to US$563 

Bn by 2030. 
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Logistics Cost as a Percentage of GDP 

inca Cg a 

India’s logistics industry has achieved remarkable progress, highlighted by the country’s rise of six spots in 

the World Bank’s Logistics Performance Index (LPI). This improvement is credited to various factors, such as 

technology innovation, data-driven decision-making, and policy initiatives aimed at facilitating world-class 

infrastructure. mproving logistics performance can be a crucial factor in a country’s economic growth, 

enabling businesses to enhance their trade competitiveness, reduce expenses, and increase supply chain 

efficiency. This not only boosts productivity and customer satisfaction but also attracts foreign investment by 

creating a favorable environment for companies to operate in.By minimizing lead times, cutting 

transportation costs, and improving inventory management, logistics improvements help businesses 

optimize their operations and increase profits. 

> India climbs six spots on World Bank’s Logistics Performance Index 
India has moved up six places to reach the 38 rank out of 139 countries on the Logistics Performance Index. 

The LPI index measures countries on six aspects of logistics performance, including infrastructure quality, 

customs efficiency, logistics services quality, international shipment arrangements, on-time delivery 

frequency, and shipment tracking. 

38" Position 
In 2028, India’s Rank in the World Bank 

Logistics Performance Index 

Several factors have contributed to India’s improved LPI ranking, such as the implementation of the Goods 

and Services Tax (GST), investments in infrastructure, and the adoption of technology. The use of digital 

technologies, such as GPS and RFID, has enabled better tracking of goods, reducing theft and 

pilferage.The National Logistics Policy (NLP) and the PM Gati Shakti initiative are important overarching 

policy steps taken in this direction by the central government to deliver results by 2024-25. 

According to a recent EY report titled “India@100: realizing the potential of a US$26 trillion economy,” India 

is expected to reach a staggering US$26 trillion by FY 2048. As the nation gears up to achieve this milestone 

over the next 25 years, the transportation and logistics industry will be a key enabler. 

Currently, India’s freight movement is heavily dependent on road transportation, accounting for 66 percent of 

cargo in ton-kilometers. Rail transportation follows closely behind, with a share of 31 percent, while shipping 

and air transportation contribute three percent and one percent, respectively. However, freight 

transportation is unevenly distributed across different modes 

The present capabilities that exist in the Indian logistics industry are as follows: 
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Road Network 
66.71 Lakhs km Rail 1.26 Lakhs km 

Shipping 
12 Major ports 

200 non-major 

ports 

Airports 148 

OPPORTUNITIES & EMERGING TRENDS IN TRANSPORT SECTOR 

> OPPORTUNITIES IN TRANSPORT SECTOR 

¥ Technological innovation 
The integration of advanced solutions is revolutionizing logistics operations, enhancing efficiency, and 

unlocking new opportunities. Key technologies shaping the future of logistics include: 

e = Artificial intelligence(Al)and machine learning: Al-powered algorithms and machine learning 

models enable predictive analytics, demand forecasting, route optimization, and real-time decision- 

making. These tools empower businesses to optimize their supply chains, improve resource 

allocation, and deliver enhanced customer experiences. 

e Internet of things (IoT): With the proliferation of IoT devices, logistics companies gain greater 

visibility and control over their assets and inventory. loT sensors and connectivity facilitate real-time 

tracking, remote monitoring, and predictive maintenance, enabling proactive and efficient logistics 

operations. 

e Robotics and automation: Automation technologies, such as robotic process automation (RPA) and 

autonomous vehicles are reshaping warehouse operations and last-mile delivery. Robotics 

streamlines repetitive tasks, reduces errors, enhances speed, and improves safety, leading to cost 

savings and increased productivity. 

v Robotics and drone technology 
The utilization of robotics and drone technology in logistics is increasing rapidly. The global logistics robots 

market, valued at US$7.11 billion in 2022, is predicted to reach US$21.01 billion by 2029, driven by a growing 

need for complex supply chain operations, e-commerce fulfillment services, and adoption of warehouse 

management software solutions. Drones have become essential in the industry, providing solutions for 

various needs, such as surveillance, access to remote locations, urgent deliveries, grade A warehousing, and 

reverse logistics. Large e-commerce companies like Amazon and Google have integrated delivery drones into 

their operations. Additionally, DHL and Walmart are experimenting with autonomous systems and robotics. 

¥ Warehousing 
The warehousing industry is set to grow to US$27.35 billion by 2026 due to increased demand for storage 

and faster delivery times in tier 1 and tier 2 cities. To support this growth, the government is establishing 

multimodal logistic parks and other initiatives that connect urban transport to railways, attracting 

investments from institutional funds and developers. 

Y Green logistics technology 
The implementation of green logistics technology, which includes climate measurement tools, real-time data- 

gathering tools, electric vehicles, green cold chain solutions, electric cargo delivery drones, and logistics 

resource management platforms, can have numerous benefits like reducing waste, simplifying processes, 

improving a company’s competitiveness, and being environmentally friendly. Several companies, such as 

Spencer, Bigbasket, Amazon, Licious, Myntra, and Flipkart, have partnered with Zypp Electric for their last- 

mile delivery through e-vehicles and e-vehicle fleet management. 
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EMERGING TRENDS&GOVERNMENT MEASURES TARGETING INDIA’S LOGISTICS AND SUPPLY 

CHAIN INDUSTRIES 

¥ Dedicated freight corridors: To facilitate the seamless transportation of goods and 
commodities across India, high-speed, large-capacity railway corridors known as dedicated 

freight corridors have been established. These corridors integrate state-of-the-art technology 

and improved infrastructure, promising enhanced efficiency and effectiveness in the logistics 

operations. 

Logistics Infrastructure in India: Industrial and Freight Corridors and Port Connectivity 

Industrial corridors 
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Multimodal logistics parks: The development of multimodal logistics parks is a strategic step 
towards providing comprehensive freight-handling facilities. Spread across at least 100 acres, these 

parks offer access to various modes of transportation, including road, rail, and air. They also provide 

advanced storage solutions like mechanized warehouses and cold storage facilities, along with 

essential services like customs clearance and quarantine zones. By reducing freight costs, warehouse 

expenses, and vehicle congestion, these parks aim to optimize logistics operations and enhance 

overall supply chain efficiency. 

Parivahan portal: To standardize processes and promote seamless information sharing across 

different locations, the government has introduced the Parivahan portal. This digital platform 

encompasses SARATHI for driving license processes and VAHAN for vehicle registrations. Both 

functionalities are consolidated within a single user-friendly mobile application, ‘mParivahan’. This 

initiative streamlines administrative procedures and provides easy access to information related to 

registration cards and drivers’ licenses, facilitating smoother logistics operations. 

Introduction of the e-way bill:The implementation of the e-way bill system mandates the use 
of electronic documentation for truckloads valued above INR 50,000. This digital documentation 

eliminates the need for physical paperwork and state boundary check posts, simplifying inter-state 

vehicle movement. By reducing turnaround time and bureaucratic hurdles, the e-way bill initiative 

enhances logistics efficiency and expedites overall supply chain movement. 
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A Bird’s Eye-View of Strategic Policy Initiatives by The Government of India 

According to the National Logistics Policy, 22 Mn people in India are employed in the logistics sector. The 

logistics industry shall create an additional 1.2 Mn jobs by 2025. A sector this large and so crucial to support 

India’s plan to join the ranks of developed nations by 2047, necessitates a framework of coordinated 

Government initiatives so as to reduce wastage and attain goals in a timely and sustainable manner. The 

following section presents the gist of some of the leading initiatives implemented by the Government of India 

for the same 

e PM Gati Shakti and National Master Plan (NMP) 
Launched in October 2021, PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan (NMP) addresses the need for integrated 

infrastructure developmentand network planning for multimodal connectivity across various economic zones 

in the nation. This plan identifies seven enginesfor economic growth and aims to promote sustainable 

development through logistics synergy, faster implementation, adoption ofinnovative technology and 

financing. 

e National Logistics Policy (NLP)and Comprehensive LogisticsAction Plan 

(CLAP) 
Launched in September 2022, NLP targets toreduce the cost of logistics in India; improvelndia’s ranking in 

the Logistics PerformanceIndex ranking and; create a supportiveecosystem for an efficient logistics 

industry.To achieve these targets, the ComprehensiveLogistics Action Plan (CLAP) was launched as apart of 

the NLP covering eight action areas viz. 

e Production Linked Incentive (PL) Schemes 
In its pursuit of becoming a US$ 5 Tn economy, India - the fifth largest economy in the world - is raring to 

ignite the engines of its export manufacturing prowess to the fullest. 

e Bharatmala 
The BharatmalaPariyojana is a broad-based initiative by the Government of India to develop about 26,000 km 

length of Economic Corridors, along with Golden Quadrilateral (GQ) and North-South and East-West (NS-EW) 

Corridors to carry a majority of the Freight Traffic on roads. 

« Dedicated Railways Freight Corridors 
The establishment of Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) aims to lower logistics costs, develop new industrial 

hubs and connect terminals under the Gati Shakti plan seamlessly. 

e Sagarmala 
This is the flagship program of the Ministry of Ports, Shippingand Waterways to heighten the use of 

waterways in multimodaltransport and create career opportunities in ports and themaritime sector. 

e e-SANCHIT 
To enhance the ease of doing business in India, the Departmen of Revenue has launched an e-SANCHIT web 

portal as a part of its initiative called the Single Window Interface for Facilitating Trade (SWIFT) that seeks to 

reduce the dependencies on government officials and expedite the process. 

e Amritkaal Maritime Vision 2047 
‘Amritkaal Maritime Vision 2047’ is an action plan to transform the maritime sector of India or develop a 

‘Blue Economy’ with an elaborate investment of 2 80,000 Lakhs Cr. 

CHALLENGES IN TRANSPORT SECTOR 

Logistics space is fast changing and as we evolve, we are encountering new problems to solve. Some 

challenges still persistat various stages of complexity and call for increased focus towards resolution. 
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1. Transportation cost 

One of the biggest heads in any logistics company is transportation cost and unstable fuel prices and 

maintenance can increase it further. For saving transportation cost, alternatives needs to be adopted like 

combining shipments, installing routing software and reducing carriers. Many businesses today switch 

between partial-truckload, less-than truckload, and full truck load shipments (FTL vs PTL vs LTL) to manage 

costs based on cargo. 

2. Technology adaption 

It is a must to adopt technology in logistics, and inability to implement tools like shipment tracking systems, 

automation systems, data analytics, etc. often prove to be a deterrent for logistics companies. 

3. Regulations 

Logistics rules and regulations in India that are enforced by national, regional and local authorities keeps 

changing at times and needs constant monitoring. If not handled in a timely manner, these impact logistics 

and delivery timelines, and efficiency is compromised. 

4. Handling customer experience 

The logistics industry is highly competitive, and customers are spoilt for choices. Logistics companies are 

expected to deliver the best to create customer delight and thereby generate repeat business. Providing 

assistance at every touchpoint can be challenging for providers and affect customer experience. 

5. Manpower Management 

Manpower plays a significant role in logistics and communicating with drivers and staff who mostly are on 

the road gets difficult. The logistics sector needs skilled manpower and shortage of drivers is a never-ending 

challenge. Moreover, there is a lack of training institutions too. 

6. Deteriorating conditions of roads in the interiors of the country 

While India has made significant progress in developing its road infrastructure, there are still areas, 

particularly in the interiors of the country, where road conditions are poor. This poses challenges for logistics 

operations. 

7. Lack of clarity on weaving sustainability measures into the business models MSMEs and smaller 

partners 

8. Inadequate Safety measures 

Inadequate Safety measures owing to high-cost pressures remain a concern. 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONCERNS 

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy 

The Company has an effective and reliable internal control system commensurate with the size of its 

operations which are constantly assessed. The efficacy of the internal checks and control systems is validated 

by internal as well as statutory auditors. The Audit Committee reviews the internal audit plan, adequacy and 

effectiveness of theinternal control system. It also reviews functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism and 

monitors the action taken on the cases reported. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory 

Auditorsand the Business Heads are periodically apprised of the internal auditfindings and corrective actions 

taken. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman ofthe 

Audit Committee. 
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The company has in place adequate internal financial controls withreference to financial statements. During 

the year, such controls weretested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was 

observed. The Audit Committeeof Directors periodically reviews the significant findings of audits, as 

prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and in the SEBI (ListingObligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Risk Management 

Your Company believes that managing risks helps in maximizing returns.The Company’s approach to 

addressing business risks is comprehensiveand includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for 

mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks. The risk management framework is reviewed 

periodically by the Board and theAudit Committee. 

The Company however faces the following risks: 

« Competition Risk: This risk arises from more players wanting a share in the same pie. Like in most 
other industries, opportunity brings with itself competition. We face different levels of competition in 

each segment, from domestic as well as multinational players. However, NECC has established strong 

brand goodwill in the market and a strong foothold in the entire logistics value spectrum. 

e Regulatory Risk:If we are unable to obtain required approvals and licenses in a timely manner, our 

business and operations may be adversely affected. However, the Government has come up with a 

number of initiatives to boost the logistics sector and has planned massive investments in the 

infrastructure sector. As all industry predictions suggest that this will be the trend in the future as well 

and given our own experience in obtaining such permissions, we do not expect this risk to affect us 

materially in the coming years. 

e Liability Risk: This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to cargo, equipment, life and 
third parties which may adversely affect our business. The Company attempts to mitigate this risk 

through contractual obligations and insurance policies. 

As a diversified enterprise, your Company continues to focus on asystem-based approach to business risk 

management. A strong andindependent Internal Audit function at the corporate level carriesout risk focused 

audits across all businesses, enabling identification ofareas where risk management processes may need to 

be strengthened. 

OPERATION AND FUTURE OUTLOOK (ABOUT NECC 

GEOGRAPHICAL AOS 

4 COUNTRIES 
(INDIA | NEPAL | BHUTAN | BANGLADESH) 
28 STATES | 250 OFFICES 
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North Eastern Carrying Corporation Ltd (NECC) was started in 1968 by Late Sh. Jaswant Rai Jain as a part 

load service between Delhi and the difficult and most remote parts in the east and north east of India. It soon 

became a renowned name amongst the traders for safety of goods and prompt services. The company has 

always put forth the interests of its clients and till date we have been trying to follow the same principles. The 

company’s wings were further expanded after the joining of Sh. Sunil Kumar Jain (CMD) in 1980 who took 

NECC’s presence to pan India while starting new verticals and expanding the horizon of services offered to 

the vast set of clients. NECC has always been a preferred logistics partner for most of reputed organizations 

throughout India. Over last decades we have transformed from a mere PTL player to a full fledged logistics 

company, while gaining not just customers but also the reputation of being one of the most reliable 

transportation company and giving turnkey solutions for all logistics needs. Today, NECC family comprises of 

thousands of employees and associated vendors offering their services throughout India, Nepal & Bhutan. 

The Company had got listed with Bombay Stock Exchange in the year 2012 and with the National Stock 

Exchange in the year 2016. 

NECC Vision 

To provide seamless transit of materials across national and international borders using multi-model 

solutions for speedier movement at lowest cost 

NECC Mission 

We aim to be a leading & preferred distribution solution provider organization, providing tailor made 

solutions PAN India under one banner 
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Currently NECC offer’s services like part truck load (PTL), full truck load (FTL), bulk movements, ODC 

movements, warehousing & 3pl 

“+ PTL: movement of goods/small parcels (<50kg’s) from all over India to the eastern and north eastern 

part of the country. This is the flagship business of the company and we are proud to be the top 

player in the entire region in terms of network density and serviceability. We have more than 4 lakh 

customers in this division along with 187 offices spread across India/Nepal/Bhutan. 
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NECC NECC. 

NECC TRANSPORT RELATED SERVICES 

PTL / PARCEL LOAD MOVEMENT - CORE BUS|NESS 
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o “+ FTL: we provide this service to all major corporate where we can place the truck from anywhere to 

anywhere depending on the clients needs. 

FULL TRUCK LOAD AND OVER DIMENSIONAL NECS 
FULL TRUCK LOAD SERVICES 
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OVER DIMENSIONAL CONSIGNMENT (ODC) & BULK MOVEMENTS 

NECC has highly skilled 
manpower having requisite 

mining-mate certificates and 
high-capacity loaders enabling 
fast movement. 

NEC® provicies services relatec! 

to bulk movements of iron ore 
and various types of chrome 

ore. 

Providing end to end logistics 
solution from the mapped 
mines to the customer's 
manufacturing units. 
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o “+ Bulk movements: in this division, we offer services like mining logistics, chrome/iron/magnese ore 

transportation from mines to processing hubs to plants and then to final customers. We are proud to 

be able to give end to end solution to our clients having negligible competition. 

o “+ ODC movements: over dimensional consignments require special expertise and safety measures to 

be transported over long distance, NECC’s team of experts do this all over India on turnkey basis. 

| 

Over dimensional consignments " 

o “+ Warehousing & 3pl: we have more than 1.5 million sq ft of warehousing space all over India. (mix of 

lease and owned) and providing our clients with complete solution of primary movements, storage 

and then to end customers on just in time basis. This is the fastest growing division for the company 

at the moment and we have been investing in building assets to grow our strength in this business. 

MOVING YOU AHEAD 

NECC’s WAREHOUSES HAVE SPREAD 
ACROSS 250 MAJOR CITIES IN INDIA 

WITH AN AREA OF 15 MN SQ. FT. 

agement and Stacking Methods 

2 “+ Control Tower-enabled customized Freight solution with end-to-end visibility: 
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In this era of tech-enabled development, the threat of cyber thefts and fraud is looming large. There is an 

increasing need for live tracking of the consignments travelling the length and breadth of the country. NECC 

Freight’s Control Tower-enabled 24*7 tracking approach provides clients with this peace of mind and 

enhances ease of doing business 

During the FY 2023-24, following are the major clients of our Company: 

HINDALCO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
APL APOLLO LTD 
GAIL (INDIA) LTD 
RUNGTA SONS PVT LTD 
DURA-LINE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
LG BALAKRISHNAN & BROS LTD 
TVS SCS Global Solutions 

TVS Supply Chain 

MANKIND PHARMA LTD 
0. SUNDARAM BRAKE LINNINGS 

11. S CHAND AND COMPANY LIMITED 

12. ZF COMMERCIAL VEHICLE CSIL 

13. POLO QUEEN INDUSTRIAL AND FIN POLO QUEEN 

14. RUPA COMPANY LIMITED 

15. CAVINKARE PVT LTD 

16. TATA Steel Limited, JODA 
17. WIN MEDICARE LTD 
18. UNO MINDA LTD. 

Our plan is to develop and strengthen our manpower base which is a key factor for our long term growth. 

Also, as a logistics service provider we feel that our reach and network is an important factor that would 

enable us to cater to more clients and give better serviceability to our existing ones in the PTL division. Thus, 

we are in the process of opening new office’s & branches in remote parts of India that would help us in our 

next phase of growth. We are also cautious about our investments in these new locations and we take the 

franchise route where necessary to mitigate the risks and grow ona more sustainable basis. 
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We are also very bullish on our projects and ODC/Bulk business division which caters to marquee clients like 

TATA steel and likes. This is a promising division with the potential to give major boost to our top line and is 

also the one with comparatively limited competition due high entry barriers. We as a company are committed 

to this line of business and are working extensively to improve our infrastructure by continuously investing 

in advanced material handling equipments & the training of manpower for better safety standards and 

enhanced working capabilities though our dedicated training programs in order to get more business in this 

division going ahead. 
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ENVIRONMENT:COLLABORATING FOR A GREENER PLANET 

As a logistics services provider, we recognize our responsibilityto contribute to environmental preservation 

and conservation.To this end, we actively engage in promoting green logistics,raising awareness through ESG 

campaigns, and integratingsustainable practices into our daily operations. 

Our commitment to sustainability is reflected in variousinitiatives, including the adoption of Green trucks, 

energyconservation measures, optimized warehouse managementand comprehensive water and waste 
management strategies. 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, we have also come across a more lucrative business proposal to invest 

uptoRs 20 Croresin the Company called SG Logistic Management PvtLtd. for the purpose of carrying out 

transportation activities through the use of electric vehicles. Out of investment upto Rs.20 crores, our 

Company has invested Rs. 5 crores during the Financial Year 2023-24. SG Logistic Management Pvt Ltd. is a 

company incorporated by the Promoters & Promoter Group of APL ApolloTubes Ltd. a BSE and NSE listed 

Company.This investment is in line with our long term strategy to make transportation more sustainable and 

greener for the environment where we operate in. In terms of business proposition, it would be very 

lucrative, as the cost of electricity is very minimum in comparison to that of diesel. Given the huge cost for 

acquiring the assets needed to start the EV trucking at large scale, we have strategically collaborated with SG 

Logistic Management Pvt Ltd.wherein we have the advantage of gaining substantial business from their group 

companies itself. 
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Insufficient government 
incentives 

HUMAN RESOURCE/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

We truly believe that NECC’s biggest strength is its people, fondly called as NECC’ites, and is the single most 

important factor to ensure sustainable business growth and become ‘Future Ready’. This is why we have a 

relentless focus on strengthening our talent management and employee engagement processes.As on March 

31, 2024, the Company’s total manpower stood at 569 employeeswhich include Executives and Non- 

Executives. 

For effective and meaningful Human Resource management at NECC, we concentrate on all aspects of the 

employee lifecycle to provide a holistic experience to the NECC’ites. During their tenure with NECC, a 

NECC’ites is motivated through various skill development interventions, including job rotations, customized 

training programme and engagement and volunteering programs. We also strived to be more open, 

transparent and objective in our people processes. We encourage debate and open dialogue on various 

processes directly impacting NECC’ites which helps us to develop and improvise our people strategy for 

future. 

The Industrial Relations of the Company too, continued to be on a cordial note. There was no loss of man-days 

on accountof industrial unrest. Further, there are regular interactions between the management and the 

employees, thereby fostering anatmosphere of trust and cooperation. 

Internal policies 

The leadership competency frameworkfor the organisation has been fullyintegrated with various HR 

processes.A functional competency framework for all the different functions in the Company has 

beendeveloped; it isnow being used to create learningacademies and drive excellence in eachfunction.To 

enable people to take up thehigher responsibilities, the transitionprogrammes have been made morerelevant 

and robust. Learningneeds have been addressed during FY 2023-24 through new programmesin the areas of 

strategy, execution andcritical thinking. 

Our people practices have received recognition at different forums and we are committed to provide 

professional and enabling working environment at all levels envisaging a boundary less workplace, ensuring 

free flow of ideas and information through unified organization structure and defined processes. We are a 

non-discriminating employer ensuring our HR and CSR initiatives are devoid of any prejudices protected by 

law. Our affirmative actions include actively hiring women candidates, support hiring of differently abled and 

other CSR initiatives which touches more than 15000 lives. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
Certain statements in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section may be forward looking and are stated as 

required byapplicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be different 

from what the Managementenvisages in terms of future performance and outlook. 

On Behalf of the Board of Director of 

North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Sd/- 

(Sunil Kumar Jain) 

Chairman and Managing Director 

Place: Delhi DIN: 00010695 

Date: September 07, 2024 89
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To The Members of North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

30 th May, 2024 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We nave audited the accompanying financial statements of North Eastern Carrying 
Corporation Limited ("the Company"}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
3), 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss lincluding Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a surnmary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred te as “the 
financial statements"), 

In Our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 [“the Aci") in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in confermity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
siate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit including other 
comprehensive income, changes In equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date, 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1, The Company has not provided Provision for doubtful debts since the management 
is of the opinion that Debtors are fully realizable, 

2, The company has not recognized Right to Use assets of leased property since In the 
view of management the lease are not long term lease. 

3. The debit and credit balances are subject to confirmation 

Financial impact of above observation are not ascertainable. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above stated matters 

FE 
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We conducted our audit of the financial statements in cecordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143/10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards cre further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our repert. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ffhics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisians of fhe Act and the Rules made there 
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key Gudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judament, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsisle for the preparation of the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual 

Report, out does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ 

report, 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cever the other infermation and we 

will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated, 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance {including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with ihe accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian acceunting Standards {ind AS] specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recerds in 
accoraance with the provisions cf the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds. relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

in preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting Unless the 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but ta do so, 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's: financial 
reporting process, 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individualhy 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

AS part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

lo those tisks, Gnd obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and apprepriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals. 

- Evaiuaie fhe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimotes and related disclosures made by 
management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material Uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as ageing concern. If we 
conclude that a materia! uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Gur conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa 
going concern, 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the Underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation, 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ofher 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant aucit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and te 
cammunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
though? to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditors’ report Unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we détermine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. Asrequired by the Companies [Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued 
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143[11] of the Act. we give in 
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

2, Asrequired by Section |43(3) of the Act, we recor that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all fhe information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
ihe Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account, 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial siatements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, reac with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

®) Qn the basis of the written representations received from the directors as an 
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
the financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B" to this report. 

g) IN our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
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hn) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as 

amended jn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations diven to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations oan its 
financial position in its financial statements- Refer Note on contingent 
liabilities to the financial statements. 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

There has been no delay in transferring the amounts, which was required 

to be transfered to the investor education and protection fund by the 
company, 

[aj}The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrewed funds or share oremium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

["Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shail, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behaif of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

{o]The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds (which aré material eitner individually or in the 
aggregate] have been receivea by the Company fram any person or 

entity. including foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directiy or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or eniities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on benalf of the Funcing Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonabie 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i} 

and (ii) of Rule 11{e}, as provided under [a] and [b) above, contain any 

material misstatement, 

The company has not declared or proposed dividend during the year. 

7 
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vL As Provided in the Reporting Rule 11({g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, that for the financial year commencing on or after 
the 1st day of April 2023, every company which uses accounting software 
for maintaining Its books of account, shall use only such accounting 
software which has a feature of recording audit trall of each and every 

transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of 
account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring 
that the audit trail cannot be disabled. Based on our examination, The 
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 

For Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration Number: 010192N 

“D.C. Kawano 
(CA. Dinesh Chand Kaushik) [ of 
Pariner cal 

Membershio Number: 505463 Se he 
UDIN: 4 Lyset 443 BKC C AV ee ye 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 30 May, 2024 
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ANNEXURE 'A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited of 
even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit, we state that: 

i. In respect of the Company's Property. Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. of 
intangible assets. 

(c} The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years 

which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and 
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by 
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for 
land on which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / 
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self- 
constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than 
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favor of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under 
Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year, 

(e] No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

ii, (a) Company had no inventory during the year hence provision of clause 3(ii}( a) of 
the order is not applicable to the company. 

(b} The Gampany has sanction of working capital limits in excess of & 5 crore, in 
aggregate, during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets , and quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the 
Company. 

iii. The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships, and has not granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the 
year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (ajto (fhof the order are not applicable 
to the company. Except that The Company has made investment of Rs, 499.78 
Lacs in SG Logistic Management Pvt. Ltd. during the F.Y. 2023-24 which is not 
prejudicial to the Interest of the Company. 

ay 
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Wil, 

vill, 

xi. 

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of laans granted, investments made and guarantees 
and securities provided, as applicable. 

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable, 

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 

In respect of statutory dues: 

(al In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 

Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of 
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

{b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are NIL: 

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest from any lender, 

(b) The Company has net been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) The Company has applied the term loan for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 

on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long- 
term purposes by the Campany-. 

{e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or ta 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

(f) The Company has not raised any loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary, 
joint ventures or associates companies. 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year except Rs. 8,119.03 
Lacs has been raised through Right Issue by issuing 4,50,33,818 fully paid up equity 
shares @ Rs. 18/- per share during the F.¥. 2023-24 and amount has been used for 
the purposes for which this amount was raised. Balance 1,43,784 partly paid up 
equity shares @ R's 9.00 per share shall be called in next FY 2024-25. 

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally} and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been 

noticed or reported during the year. 

PAWN 
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xii. 

XIV. 

XVI. 

Wil. 

XVII. 

xUx. 

RX. 

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the 
date of this repart. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures, 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable, 

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties 
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(2) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business. 

(6) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 
the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures. 

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), 
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi}(d) of the Order is not applicable, 

The Company has not incurred cash loss during the financial year covered by our 
audit and during the immediately preceding financial year, 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. Accordingly, clause (xviii) of the paragraph 3 of Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company 
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the Company as and when they fall due. 

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule 
Vil to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso ta sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx}(a) of the 
Order is not applicable for the year, 

ay ; Mey 

99



(b) No amount unspent under sub section (5) of section 135 of Companies Act 
pursuant to any ongoing project for CSR amount was outstanding for transfer to 
special Account in compliance with the provision of sub section (6) of section 135 
of Companies Act at the end of the Financial Year. 

For Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration Number: .010192N 

———$_— Ts 
(CA. Dinesh Chand Kaushik) \*\ 
Partner eae 
Membership Number; 505463“ 
UDIN! TH SoS4s3 BKCG AU £et S 
Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 30 May, 2024 
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Annexure 'B' To the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Requilatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the Members of North Eastern 
Carrying Corporation Limited) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company fer the year 

ended on that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financia’ 

controls systernm with reference to financial statements and such internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements. criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal: control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements 

criteria established by the Campany considering the essential components of internal 

ecoanirel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ICAI, 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013: 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is fo exoress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
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accordance with the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Centrals over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Cantrels and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Nate require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference jo 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects, 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrals 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference te financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgmeni, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and dppreapriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial staternents for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary fo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
infernal financial control with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration Number:-010192N 

DiC Ko og 
(CA. Dinesh Chand Kaushik) [s 
Partner ; 
Membership Number: 505463 0 

UDIN:S4 S054 63 Bkce Aves 
Place of Signature: New Delhi 

Date: 30 May, 2024 

ie 
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NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

{All amounts ln INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MSRCH, 2024 

PARTICULARS Notes As At As At 
21.02.2024 31.02.2023 

amtins. Lakhs  Amt.in Rs. Lakhs 

(1) Mon-current assets 

ia) Proseny, Piant and EquipmesL 4 Sao. 46 53.66 

ib) intangible assets 5 220,25 373,62 

ich Finance Assets 
§) Loans =] B08. 27 253.84 

ti) Invesiments 7 age 7a - 

jc} Deferred Tax Assets Bf BO 33.42. 
2206.35 1,641.53 

(2) Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

fi} investmenis - - 

{u) Trathe receivaoles 5 a Peat 17.595-20 

(ii) Cashard cash equivalects g 2124.87 81456 

(iv) Other Bank betances - - 

iv} Loans ag: 15,362,393 10,295.45 

(b) Gl er current assets . — 
25,475.95 22,645.90 

Tetal Assats 31,662.30 24,340.43 

EQUITY ABD LIABILITIES 

(1) Equity : 

(a) Share Capital ia 9530/36 S04o73 

ib) Sines Equity 12 $065.82 §,486.33 
19,396.42 W0,486.07 

Liabilities 
{2} Mon-Current Liabilities 
(a} Finance Liabuliies 

i) Berrowings 44 41,015.28 4,782 38 

(hb) Previghins edb 7s 232.25 

1,246.07 1,994.49 

(3) Current Liabilities 

ia) Finaricial Liabilities = ; 

(i) Borrewings 4a 8,258,95 10,138.62 

(li) Trade Payables 16 OaaT 292 5d 

(b) Other Gurrent Lisbilities 16 908.25 Age Fo 

(c] Provisions 1¥ 420.55 692 04 
77108044 11,854.06 

Total Equity & Liabilities 31,682.30 24,340.43 

Significant Accounting Pokees is 
The Hotes No. 1 to 57 are ifegral Sart of these financial staiaments. 
As perourreport of even date attached, 

For Namani Garg Aaganwal & Co. For and on behalf of board of 

Firm Regn. Mo, (101926 North Ea Carrying Corporation Limited 

Chartered Accountants we 

“D.C Kou ane a 
Dinesh Chand Kaushik Neh Sunil Kumar Jaln Utkarkh Jain 
Partner Li Ja a} Managing Dirgetor Director 

W.We.: 505463 DIN: guntdsss GIN; D527 18bd 

UDINS TUsas Ges encanta 

seen 
Mamta Bisht 

Company Secretary 

MONo, 30547 

Place: New Dethi 

Date: 30.05.2024. 

Ie 
§.L Yadav 

CFO 



NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
{All amounts in INA Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

PARTICULARS 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operaligrs 

Oller Inne 

EXPENSES 

Operating Dred CostiSenices Availed 
Employee Berent Expenses 
Financial Costs 

Deprecation and Ainortization Expense 
Other Administrative Expenses 

Profil belo exceptional and estrsordinary items and tax 

Excapbonal Items 

Brovit belore exlragrdinary ilens and:tax 
Estraordinary lems. 

Pratt before ta: 

Tax GSS: 

(1) Provision for-Current tax (income Tas) 
(2) Deferred Tax Savings (Charge) 
(3) Provision for tae Barber year Wihaek 

Profi(Loss) tram the period Ireen continuing operadons 

Profilbess) Pom discontinued operations 
Tse €2pense of Giscounlinwesd eperations 
ProfittLoss} from Discontinued operations. 

Profit{Loss) forthe period 

Other comprehansive income 

LAL) Herm Thal wall nol Ge f¢classtied be profilor loss. 
Ul Income tax relaling to item that will met be classiled ta 

Profit'and Loss 

(EPL Terns {hal wall be reclaseilied to proat or loss: 

Total 

Textil 

(i Ineome tax relating to item that will be clessilied to Profit and 
Lege - Legs on reclassilication of orally 

Total Other Gomprehansive income 
Tetal Comprehensive In¢ame for the year 

Earning peraquity share: 
(1) Basic 

(2) Dilubad 

Significant Accounting Polcies 

Hotes 

14 
+2. 

20 
ral 
a2 
za 
2d 

143 

The Noles No. 760.7 ane iiegral part of these finanoal stalements, 

AS por Our foport of oven date attachod, 

For Kemani Garg Aganval & Co. 

Firm Regn, No, O1192N re 
Charterad Accountants we ae 

fof 
TH .C. Kopel.» 
Dinesh Chand Kaushik hoe 
Partner arescaart, 

MMO: 505463 =a 

UO Suces ey REC CHU LSKS 

Place: New Celi 

Date: S0.05.2024 

Fer the year ended 

31.03.2024 
Amt. In Rs. Lakhs 

For the yaar anded 

31.03.2025 
Arh In Rs. Lakhs 

33,571.52 30 583.22 

167.12. 41ai 
33.6724 a0 647.03 

BT .ee0.08 26-000 -49 
+ FiS.07 4.472.60 
Sor 05 7OE.00 
7.63 Baad 

1,836.87 1.860.95 
SE055 84 25,707.08 

{0iGna 936.95 

TONES 035.95 

4016.83 030.95 

2a a2 Pe. 
6418 76.48 

- 14.42 82.25 
802, 20 grF10 

02.20 See 

“ W418 20:74 

: ao 
= Wie 15.45 

Fo1.62 ag245 

O04 Te 

84 1.15 

For and on behalf of board of 

North Easter Carrying Corporation Limited 

ae, 
Sunil Kumar Jain 

Managing Olrector 

DIN 2 O0041 0695 

spe ln 
Maria Bistt 

Company Secretary 

MM. No. a0aa7 

DIN: 05271884 

J, 
3. L. Yaday 

cro 

—
 ! 

Fi
 

i 
—
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NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

“CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE TEAR ENDED 31.05.2024 

(All amounts inINR Lakhs, unless otherwise stabed) 

Amt WB, 

AC Gash Flow Fron Operating Activites: 

Hat Profit bears taxelice 1.045.82. 

4c: Doprecedion 
312.83 

Svb-Teal 
Ted 

Add: Promnilosst Lees on Sale al Fined Assets : Wie 

(Charges edie ts tenes reclassified to pant and ios5 : a1 

Less: lnlergat on incaird Tax Rehondtouier Interest Ee A ae 

Cpersiog Prafil betare working capilal changes Tibg4 

Chawe In Sundry Devine 2 agi 74 

Shangein Laars & Adyanges - 3.08144 

Change in Lighilges 19.47 

Cash generaled toa oogratian - 4.05221 

Less: enire Tax Paid! Provided 250.80 

Net Gash From Oparaling Acuailles (4) x Feet 01 

Cath Flow From invosting Activities: 

Ada: Sale Proceeds of Fined Assets thz.a 

Less: swestmerd in Equey Shores qu 78 

Add; Intetest on Inecenie Tas Refund Dib interest Sris 

Lass: Purchase of Fined Assala rane 

Het Cach Catllw from leesting Actrilies (2) - Erilena) 

. Gash Flow Fram Finanding Aeqvitles: i 

Change in Zeaeed Berrowmnge - 50g. 1) 

Share Apobcalion Maney $118.05 

Change in Ureensed Loans - 1084.51 

Met Cash [nfiow from Finaeng fctuilies (10) 

The-above Gosh Flow Statement has been prepared under thie ndings maulliod 

AS 7 equines ra anblies Ip peewide gipciosires ‘Utena! 

Net erste fy Cash & Cash Equivalents (ArB+C) 

Ade: Cask & Cash Equivalents at beginning af Year 

Cash & Cash Equsadlents abend of Year: 

fe per our report of even Cate attached, 

For Hemani Garg Agarwal & Co. 

Firm Regis, Ho. 0201924 

Chartered Agoguntants 

Dinesh Ghand Kaushik 
Partrir 
MMe: BOS463 
vom TH Sos 463 BKC AUIS ES” 

Place: New Dolhi 
(Date: $0,08,2024 

nes uisers of finest 

6,501.38 

fig A 

21.09, 2024 
unl, in Rs. Lakhs 

99905 
aad 

Tae 25 
- M475 

45,35 
S05 

Ta0tad 

F 9eh2t 
- $559.02 

162,40 
- 1 tts 

sec AF 
- a6e1i - fiat 14 

1755 

' 21.05 
a 

- a00.24 aes) 

1,828.65 

27850 
6,501.35 or a 

Ta 

51455 

Zletae 

AG AE 

91.05, 2023 

fi in Bis, Lakhs 

© 14eiii 

- 318.59 

71 S0818 

48.05 

Teds 

i405 

For and on behall af board @! 

Korth 

—! 
—_—_—" 

Sunll Kumar Jain 

Managing Director 

CAN : CO049855 

wre be i 

Miomta Bisht 

Company Socrelary 

MOM. S047 

store Garcying Gorparaian Limibed. 

we 
dale 

Curacker 

DIN :O82P1dae 

es 
SLYavay 

oro 

Utka 

Ss fal ulin Indian Accounting Slandarg iNOS?) The senders. bo Ind 

slatements if -pyalale changes in linblilies arising Iram financing adivilies, 

including bath changes acing trom cash Tas ard an-casli changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconniiallion bebween the opening snd closing silanes in 

ine Bacance Sheet for liablibes aris: 

imigast at the finengetl statements of thee Company. 
fg Iremrfinnndig Solienios; ty nusel Ihe csclo: sure requirement The adoglign of amendspest did nee have any meters 
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NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Statement of Ghanges in Equity (SOCE] far the year ended March 21, 2024 

{Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless alherwise stated} 
4. Equity Share Capital a Amount in Rs Lakhs 

Particulars ‘AsatAprild,  Ghange in equity As at Change in As at 
2022 share capital March 31, equity share March 31, 

during the year 2023 capital during 2024 

the year 

Eourty Shere 6.01973 0.00 $079.73 4 810-57 9,930.30 

B. Other Equity ‘ Amount in Rs lakhs 

\Parthoulars Reserves & Surplus Tatal 

| Share Premium Retained Earnings 
Balance as at April, 2022 - 4 o73.87 4074.89 

Profit for the period - S7rag 677.10 

Other camprohensive incame (net of tax) - 15.35 15.35 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 : “ $466.32 6466.4 

| Pratt for the perioa 3,608.46 Bo2 20 4,410.68 

| Other comprehensive income (net of tax) = 11.18 | - 1448 

Balance a& at March 31, 2024 2,608.46 | 6,257.35 9365.83 

For Nemani Garg Agarwal & Co. For and on behalf of board of 

| Finn Regn. No. O10192N North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited 

Chartered Accountants : 

oo 

BC: Kawa us y , Se — : 
‘ 

Oey 

Oinesh Chand Kaushik i Sunil Kumar Jain Utkaysh Jain 

Partner > st Managing Director irector 

MoNo.: 605465 DIN - 00010695 DIM : 052741884 

UDIN:- AlLygias YES aKeaaael uy ae 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30.05.2024. 

eres , 

Mamta Bisht 

Company Secretary 
Mi. Ne, 20347 

Me 
5. Li Yadav 

CFO 



1, 

NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 1, 2024 

Corporate information 
North Eastern Carrying Corporation Limited is a Limited Company incomorated under the 

orovisions of tne Companies Act, 1956; The company is engaged in the business of 

transportation 

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

(i) Statement of compliance: | 
The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2924 are 

prepared in all material aspects in accerdance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} 

as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies. Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2075 and Campanies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2076 and relevant provisions ef the Cornpanies Ael, 2013. 

(ii) Basis of Preparation: 

Effective April, 2017. fe Company has adopted ail the Ind AS standards and the 

adaption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 107 First time adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards, with Apil-1, 2016 as the transition cate. The transition was carned 

out fram Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under 

Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
(GAAP), which was the previous GAAP, 

(iii) Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention xcept 

for the following which have been measured at fair value: 

* Financial assets and liabilities except borrowings carried at amonieed cast 

3, Significant accounting policies: 
Property, plant and equipment: 

Property, plant and eauipment are stated at original nost net of tax /duty credit availed, 

less accumulated depreciation and sccumulated impairment Losses, if eny, Cost includes 
all incidental expenses relating to acquisition and installation of Property, plant and 
equipment. 

Depreciation on computers and related equipment is provided on the written down value 
method except on Lorry & Trucks on which depreciation js provided on straight line 
method over their useful lives and in the manner preseriged under Schedule Il of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Depreciaton on Goodwill is being provided on straight line method 
Over ten years: 

An ltem of property, plant and equipment is derecognmed upon disposal or woen no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any 
gain or loss. ansing on the disposal or retirement of tem of property, plant-and equipment 

is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed al 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if aporanrniate. 

*s, 
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jijCash and cash equivalents: 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise. cash on hand and demand deposits with banks 
whieh are shan-tenn, highly liquid investments that are ready sonverfiblé into Known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value, 

WijEmployees Benefits: 

a) Short term employee benefits 
All employees’ benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are 
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term 
campensated absences, performance incentives ete., and the expected cost of bonus, 

ex-gralia are recognised during the geriad in which the employse renders related serace. 

b) Pest-omployment benefits 

The Campany makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to 
the Government: The minimum interest payable by the Government to the beneficiaries 

every year [5 noted by the goverment 

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The present value of the 
abligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial vaiuation 
using the Projected Linit Credit Methad, which recognises Gach period of service as 

giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present 
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on 
Government securilias as al the balance sheet date. 

Termination benefits: 
Termination benefits are recognised 6s an expense in tne period in which they are 

incurred 

iv)Foreign currency transactions: 

{a} Functional and presentation Currency 
The Company's financial statements aré presented In INR, which is also the Carmpeany’s 

functional and presentation currency. 

ib) Transaction and Balance 

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled curing the year 

are recagnised in the Statement of profit and loss of the year. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreiqa currencies as at the balance sheet 
dete are translated. at the closing exchange rates on thal date. The resultant exchange 

differences are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Non-Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a fareign 

currency are reported using the exchange rate at ihe date of the transactians. 

viRevenue recognition: 
Reveriue is recognised to the extent that it is possible that {he economic benefits will flow 

ta the company and the revenue can be reliably meaeured, 
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yijProvisions and contingencies 

(a) Provisions 
. 

Provisions are recognised when the. Campany has 4 present obligation flegal or 

censiuctive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 4 reliable 

estimate of the amount of the abligation. Provisions are reviewed at cach reporting period 

and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

(bh) Contingencies 

A ciselosure for contingent liability is made when there is possible obligation arising from 

past event the existence af which will be confirmed enly by the occurrence or Mane 

qccurrance of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the canteal of the 

Company or a present obligation that arses from past events where it ig either not 

probable that an outflow af resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the 

arnount cannot be made. 

A disclosure for contingent assets is also made when there is possibility of an inflow of 

economic benefits la the entity which arise irom unplanned or other unexpected events, 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

vijEarnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share is com puted using the net profit for the year attributable to the 

shareholders’ and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

viiijIncome Taxes: 

Income tax comarises current tax (inclucing MAT) and deferred tax. Income tax expenses 

ig recognized in net profit in statement of Profit and loss extent to the extent that it relates 

to items recognised directly in other comprehensive incomefequity, in which case i iS 

recognized In other comprehensive income/equity, 

Current Tax ig the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the currant 

year as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961-Current tax asset and liabilities are 

offset when company has a legally enforceable right to sat off the recognized amount and 

also intends to settle on nat basis 
u 

Deferred income tax assels and lishilities are recognised for deductible and taxable 

temporary dilference arises between the tax basses cf assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amount in the financial statement 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 

that it is probable that sufficient tavable profit will be available against which those 

deductisie ternporary differences can be ulllised. Deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 

reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets ar@ reassessed al each reporting date and are 

recognised t¢ the extent Ihat it has become probable that future taxa’gle profits will allow 

the deferred tax agset to be recovered, 

Defetrad tax is measured ai the tex rates and tax law that thal have been enacied or 

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected ta apply to taxable 

income in the year in which those temperary difference is expected te be recovered or 

settled. 
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ix)Financial instruments: 

Initial measurement 
Financial instrument is récegnised as soon as the campany become a arty to the 

contractual prevision of the instruments, All Financial assets and financial lishilities are 

measured at fair value. on initial recognition, except for trade receivable which ars initially 

measured at transaction price. Transaction cost that are directly attribuiable to the 

acquisition or issue of financial instrument folher than financial measured at fair value 

through profit or loss) are added or deducted from the value of the financial instrument, 

a8 epprogriale, oninitialrecognition. 

Financial Instrument sated as financial assets or financial liabilities are generally not 

offset, and they are only offset when s legal right to set off exist al (hat and setilement on 

‘a net basis is intended. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets: 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: - 

{a} Financial asset carried at amortised cost 

4 financial asset is subsequently measured at arnertised cost if it is held within business 

model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flow and 

the contractual term of the asgel give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely 

payment of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. ; 

(b) Financial asset carried at Fair Value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently megsured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income if itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual cash flow and salling financial asset the contractual term of the asset give rise 

on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payment of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

For all other equity instrument, ihe company make irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent change in fair value. The company makes such 

election an an instrument t- instrument basis, 

{c) Financial asset carried at Fair Value through Profit and loss 

4 financial asset which is not classified in any of the above category is subsequently 

measured at fair value through profit and loss. 
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 

Debts and equity instrument issued by a company ar classified as either financial 

liavilities or as equity in accordange with the substance of the contractual arrangement 

and the definition af a financial liability and an equity instruments. 

aj, Equity Instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that an evidence and residual interest in the asseis 

of the company after deducting all of ts liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the 

company are recognized at the proceeds received, nef of direct issue costs. 

b} Financial Liabilities 

All Financial liabilities are eubsequently measured at amortised cost using the Eifective 

iniérest method. 
. 

De-recognition of financial Instrument: - 

A financial asset is primarnly derecognized when the eantiactual right te the cash flow 

from the financial asset expires and it transfers the financial asset. 

4 financial liability is derecegnized when the obligation under the lability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. 

(x). Impairment 

A). Financial Asset 

The Company measures ihe expected credit loss associated with Its assets based on 

histerical trend. industry practices and the business envirenment in which the entity 

operates or any other appropriate basis, The impairment metnedalogy applied depends 

an whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, 

B). Non-Financial Asset 

(a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible asset 

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets ere reviewed at each balance sheel date 

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication @xists, 

the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated 28 higher of ils net selling price and value in 

use, 4n impairment loss i6 recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its 

cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognized 

in ihe statement of prefit and loss. 

An impairment loss is reyarsecl if there has been a change in the estimates used ta 

determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss \s ravarsed anly te the extent that 

the agset’s carrying arnount does not axceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined net of depreciation of amerization, had no impairment loss been recognized. 

Post Impairment, depreciation | amortisation is provided on ihe revised carrying value of 

the impaired assets over its remaining useful life. 

4.Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements : 

in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made 

ihe following estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on 

the amounts recognised in the financial staternent. Uncertainty about these assumplicns 

and estimates could result in outcome that require a material adjustment to assets or 

fahilities affected in fulure periods. 



i)Praperty, plant and equipment ; 

Property. Plant and equipment represent al proportion of thé asset bese of the company. 

The useful lives and residual value of the company’s asset are determined by the 

management al the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each reporting date, 

income taxes 

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India, Significant judgements are involved in estimating 

budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tay, determining the provision for 

income taxes, including amount expected to be paidirecoveréd for uncertain tax positions 

iijContingencics 
Management judgement is required for estimating ihe possible outflow of resources, if 

any, in respect of contingencies/claimilitigations against the Company as itis not possible 

to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

ivjAllowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value es 

reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts. Individual trade 

receivables and advances are written off when management deems them not to be 

collectible. limoairment is madeoon the expected credit losses, which ‘are the present 

velue of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the Tinancial assets. 

vilmpairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there isan indication that an 

asset may be impaired. Ifany indication exists, or when an nual impairment testing for an 

asset is required, the Company estimates the agsets’s recoverable amount, An asseis's 

recoverable amount is the higher of an assets’s ar OGU's fair value less costs of dieposal 

and its value in use. VWhere the camying armnount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 

recaveradle amount. 

villmpairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of 

default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these 

assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's 

nast history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates al the end.of 

each reporing period. 

vii}Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

\hen the fait values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorces in the Balance 

Sheet cannol be measured based on queled prices in active markets, their fair value is 

measured using valuation lechniques, including the discounted. cash flow medel, which 

involve various judgements and assumptions. 
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Note 26 Non-Current Loans 

(Unganfirmes Linsecured and Consi 

Security Deposits 

Egmest Money Deposits 

Landiord Security Deposits 

Note: 7 Non Current Investments 

investment in 2139 equity shares af SG Logistic 

Management Privale Limited 

Note . 4 Trade Receivables 

(Uneenfirmed, Linsecured and Considered Good) 

Deotors 

Note :9 Cash & Cash Equivalent 

Cash-in-Hand 

Cast in Hand 

Funds in Transl 

Bank Balance 

Balance - In Gurrent Alc 

Balance - in Fixed Depesits 

Note : 10 Loans 

fUncentirmed, Unsecured & Considered Good) 

wered Good) 

EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

forming part of Balance Sheet and: Profit & Loss Statement 

ine year ended 21st March, 2024 ; 
As On 

a4 03,2024 

Amtin (Rs. Lakhs} 

is On 

34.03.2022 

Anitin (Rs, Lakhs) 

(Advance recoverable in eash or in Kind or for value to be cecd.) 

Staff Advances 

Rates & Taxes Recenvanie 

‘Prepaid Expenses & Recoverables 

Advance Income TaxiTDS (AY 2425) 

advances income Tax/TOS (AY 25-24) 

Advance Income Tax!TDS (ay 22-23) 

GST Input 

GST Deposit under protest 

Other Advances 

Interest Accrued but nat recieved on FDR 

Nate £42 Other Equity 

Refer Statement of change in E 

Shree Ganesh i Maharel 

Share Premium 

Reserves & Surplus 

Retained Eamings 

quity far detailed movementin equity balance 

57.04 16.40 

62.65 62.65 

_ 189.58 “94 77 

Total 305.27 203.87 

499.78 = 

Total 495.78 0.00 

1198824 41;535.20_ 

Total 771,885.04 11,535.20 

938.13 611.03 

arti 428,34 

7,005.99 739.37 

440.84 66.54 

ores 16.84 

1,178.78 75.18 

Total 2 124.67 514.55 | 

383.04 362 44 

422.68 Agra 

31.40 28.42 

4a3.28 i 

- 4qt.75 
993.55 

26.99 38.41 

5459 64,58 

13,556.46 ag09.34 

7 3.08 - 3.49 

Total 715 g62.35 70.296 18 

aot acd 

3,608 46 : 

G.287 35 5,466.32 _ 

Total 2.85 82 5.466. 33 
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NORTH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes farming pan of Balance Sheet anc Statement of Profit & Loss 

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
As On As On 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Amtln (Rs, Lakhs) Antdn (Rs. Lakhs) 

Note - 11: Share Capital 

Authorized Share Capital : 
‘ 

FOOCIOIAN (OOOOOOOD) Equity Shares of As leach 10,000.00: 10,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up shares: 

95737154 (S01873ae) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully 

paid up 
9,523.11 019.73 

{48784 equily shares of Rs.5 each partly paid up rae] - 

Paidup capital 
9,530.30 6,049.73 

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding atthe beginning and atthe end of the 

reporting period 

Ab he beginning of the pariod §,01,97,356 501,977,336 

issued during the period 
4,55, 77,602 O 

Atithe end of the period 
6.55,74,938 5,01,97,338 

Terms/Rights attached te equity shares 

aj The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 

10. Each holder of equity shares is enlitled to one vote per share. The equily snare, helderare- 

eligible far dividend, if so declared The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subjectta the 

approval of ine share holdecs in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of Interim 

Dividend. 
: 

bj Inthe event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity sheres will be entitled to tecelve 

any of the remaining assis of the campany, alter distribution of all preferential amounts. However, 

nesuch preferential amounts exist currently, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 

equity shares held by te shareholders, 

Aggregate number of bonus. shares issued, shares issued for consid eration other than cash 

during the period and during five years immediately preceding the reperting date 

MIL 

Details of Shareholders helding more than 5% equity shares in the company 

NEC Automobiles (P) Limited q5S34888( 10.60%) 8324182(16,60%5) 

NECC Securities (Py Limited 44he sor a1. 25%) FGHGRS0(15.25%) 

Religare Finves! Limited 
BO38dE4/(6. 33%) R0gs494(12 0590) 

. Vanya dain 
9537173 (10%) BO1G665 (10%) 

Utxarsh Jain 
TAG (7ST) | STge114 (Tort) 



| 
H EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Bas forming par of Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement 

tthe year ended 21st March. 2024 

Note 243 Non Gurrent Borrowings 

Refer note-354 for Security details 

Vehicle Loans: 

As On 

34.05.2024 

Amtin [Rs, Lakhs! 

As-On 

31.03.2023 

Ambin (Rs. Lakhs 

HDFC Bank Limited 
183.24 481.97 

BMW Financial Serviees Limited 
5r4e 69.85 

ICI) Bank Linnted 
a1ai - 

Mermedas-Benz Financial Services India Private Limiled 38.34 - 

Sundaram Finance Lirited 
1.96 - 

Holak Mahindra Bank {Term Loan) 
Go2.29 1210.45 

Total 7,015.28 1762.28 

Note! 14 Current Borrowings 

Refer note-55 B for Sequrity details 

HDEC Bank Limited 
1eT/aT aneod 

ICO! Bank Limited 
{9.52 . 

Axis Bank 
- - 

hercedes-Beng Financial Services India Private Limited 
B.74 - 

Sundaram Finance Limited 
1,08 = 

BMI Financial Services Limited 
1200 Viz? 

(Secured against hypothecaiion of vehicles financed) 

Kotak Mahindra Bank (OD Alc) 
B720.94 4,178.66 

DBS (cD and WCDL) 
3,399.23 2491.47 

Kotak Mahindra Bank (Term Lean] 
414535 188.35 

iAll the loans secured againat hypothecalanichange on all tne 

current assets incl. Book Debts and collaterally secured by charge against 

properties of Directors af the Company and other Assaciale compe nes 

and persanal quaranise of some of Directors, their HUF and Corporate 

Guarantee of Associate companies) 

Unsecured Loans 
1,835 42 2,918.95 

Total 6708.96 70,139.62. 

Note :48 Trade Payables 
Sundry Creditors 

302.37 pO? 64 

Total a02.37 ag2.64 



TH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Pies forming part of Balance Sheet and Prafit & Loss Statement 

Pe the year ended ast Merch, 2024 
As On As On 

31.03.2024 24.03,2025 

Amt.In (Rs. Lakhs] AmtJn (Rs. Lakhs} 

Note; 46 Other Current Liabilities 

Security Deposits 0.60 0.43 

E..5. Payable 1.85 1.44 

Provident Fund Payable 13.69 44.10 

Professional Tax Peyable 0.14 0.14 

T. Go. Payable S470 a, al 

GST Payable 
297.10 196.55 

Bonus! Ex-Gretia Payable 100,61 $5.03 

VAT Payable 288 i 0.95 

Lorry Freight Payable 108.45 74.94 

Excess Calls raceived - Payable O.09 - 

Other Exsenses 4 Liabilities Payable 420.64 41i de 

Total gon 23 495.70 

Note: 17 Current provisions 

Provision for L Tax (AY 2023-2024) - 259.47 

Provision for. Tax (AY 2022-2023) - 203.78 

Provision for |. Tax (AY 2024-2025) 281 92 : 

Provisian for Gratuity 50.52 129.36 

Total 440,55 $62.04 

Nolte :18 Revenue from Operations E 

Freight 32,337,85 28,951.00 

Loading & Unigading 
1178.43 1,004,198 

Warehouse Incame tas 524.03 

Tatal 83,511.52 : a0, 586.22 

Note: 19 Other Income 

Profit on sate of Fixed Assets 101.42 1475 

Kiscount an Finance - - 

Interest received F 5346 2a.55 

Rental income i) 3.42 

Total 464112 j 4184 

Note : 20 Operating / Direct Cost! Services Availed 

Lorry Freight 26,890.64 20,655.84 

Loading Expenses 45.70 111405 

Commissian O429 88.31 

Claims 182.49 rAc7S 

Warehouse Charges . $63.59 

Tatal a788008 25,490.59 

= ——118, 



TH EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

4a farming pact af Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement 

Bethe year anced 31sl March, 2024 
As Ori As On 

44.03 2024 31.03.2023 

Amtdn (Rs. Lakhs} Amtin ifs, Lakhs} 

Note: 21 Employee Benefit Expenses 
‘ 

Establishment Expenses 1473.25 — 4,255.18 

FFESI| 
100.00 B5-62 

Graluity 
42.65 38.57 

Recruitment & Training Expenses te 0.45 

Directors Remuneration ‘ T7.40 6145 

Stall Welfare 
33.54 47.04 

Total Vieny . +472.60 

Note : 22 Financial Cost 

Rank Intereat 
7e0.04 660.98 

Processing Charges 19:35 29.88 

Interest or: Laan 
26.92 46.62 

Finance Gost - veholes 
70-26 56.11 

Total 507.05 Tae. 60 

Note : 23 Depreciation & Amortised Cost 

Daoreciation and amortisation 312.64 28431 

Total 312.65: 284.34 

ay 
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EASTERN CARRYING CORPORATION LIMITED 

22 forming partof Belance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement 

ine year ended Stsl March, 2024 
, 

Hote | 24 Other Administrative Expenses 

As On 

31.03.2024 

Amtin (Rs. Laks} 

As Qn 

34.03.2023 

Artin {tRs. Lakhs} 

4.28 
0.40 

10.59 
25.62 
14.65 

6.60 
38.56 
20.55 
7.76 
5 53 

42.52 
9.53 
0.3T 

14.76 

0.06 

12.35 

1a 

1.63 
408.83 

3.67 

444 

6.00 
1.84 
25.02 

848.03 
308.41 
30.26 
25.08 

4 
& 

6.89 
19.03 

128.56 
4,660.99 

Advertigement & Publicity 
{2.03 

Business Proamoton 
0.50 

Bank Gharges & Comm. 
22.00 

Car Expenses 
$4.57 

Canveyance & Seater Petrol 
17.07 

Cemporate Social Respansitilily Expenditure 
10.62 

Diwali Expenses 

AO7T 

Elactricity & Water Charges 
61.41 

Fees, Rales & Taxes 
17.40 

General Expenses 
Tiga 

Generator Hire & Maintenance Gherges 
S17 

Insurance 

4402 

interestPenalty on Late Deposit TOS 
8.53 

Interest on ESIC 
- 

Intersst on lie deposit oF GST 
11.33 

intavest an VAT 
- 

GST Late deposil Fees 
24 

GST Penalty 
0.29 

GST 

arts 

VAT Lele fees 

).02- 

internet Changes 
0.86 

Legal & Professicnal Expenses 
458.57 

Otiee Experses 
&.82 

Provident Fund Perally 
0.02 

Packing & Forwarding Expenses 
o.64 

Payment io Auditors 
5.00 

Postage & Courier 
10.36 

Printing & Sietionary 
33.08 

Rent 

862.61 

Repair & Mainenance 
733.5) 

Sonoter Expenses 
BAT 

Security Guard Charges 
24.62 

Subscriptions 

148 

Software Expenses 
4.965 

Telephone Expenaes 
1,30 

Travelling Expenses 
— 1478S 

Total 7,546.97 

ees 
i of aa\ 

— 120 



25.Related Party Disclosures 
Related party disclosures #6 requited under 

Relsted Party Disclasures* 

a. Related parties and nature of related party relationships where control exists 

Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) - 24° 

Name of the party 

Sunil Kumar Jain 

Utkarsh Jain 

Description of relationship 

Key Management Personnel 

Key Managerial Persannel 

_ Related parties and nature of related party relationship with whom transactions 

have been Laken place 

Name of the party 

Shreyans Buildtech Private Limited 

Shreyans Buildwell Private Limited 

NEC Securities Private Limited 

NEGO Automobiles Private Limited 

Suvi Developers Private Limited 

Sunil Kumar Jain 

Uikarsh Jain 

Saurabh Uphadyay 

Priya Singh 

Ashutosh Kumar Qubey 

Vanya Jain 

Shyam Lal Yaday 

Maria Bisht 

Description of relationship 

Enterprises over which Key Managerial 

Personnel are able to exercise significant 

influence 

Enierprises over which Key Managerial 

Personnel are abla ta exercise significant 

influence 

Enterprises over which Key Managenal 

Personnel are able to exercise significant 

influence 

Enterprises over which Key ‘Managerial 

Personnel are able to exercise significant 

influence 

Enterprises over which Key Managerial 

Personnel are able to exercise significant 

influence 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Key Managerial Personnel 

Directar 

Director 
Director 

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel 

Key Managerial Personnel (CFO) 

Key Managerial Personnel (C3) 

(Rs Lakhs} 
Transactions during the year with related parties 

Key Managerial | Key Relatives | Enterprises | Others 

PersonnellDirector Managerial | of Key | aver which 
Personnel Managerial | Key 

| (CFOS) Personnel | Managerial 

| 
Personnel 

| (are able to) 
exercise 

| | significant 

—— influence 

Rent Paid 81.90 (82.20) | - ‘seo (960) | 14,78 E 

| | es we | (43-78) 

| \ 1 

ONDE 
al 



Remuneration 77,40 (61 42) | 6.44 (52.48) | - | - - 1 

| Loan Received 3356.00 (546.80) : - - | 

Loan Repaid |, 4040.57 (567.30) | - : ne 
Share Applicatian | 615.29 - Bis? 2654.83 | - 

Manay Received | | 

PersanaliCerporate | Yes - Cee Yes | = 

Guarantees 

abtained to the 
| 

extent of loan 

laken by ~~ the 
| 

_Sompatry | | | ! | 

Closing balances of related parties (Rs Lakhs) 

| Key Managerial) Key | Relatives of | Enterprises | Others | 

| PersonneliDirector Managerial Key over which 

Personnel | Managerial Key 

(CFOS) Personnel | Managerial 

| 
Personnel | 
are able to 
exercise | 
significant 

|. = influence 

| Rent Payable 95.24 (94.48) : - (22 04) 48.06 

| - at | (26.32) i] 
Remuneration 10. 5814.72) 4.19(3.50) + | - - 

Payable, | ee 
| __| 

“Unsecuted loan | 1735.42 (2419.93) “ ale “ b= 

Security Depasit | - - 27,00 - | - 

| __| (27.00) 

“Figures in bracket represent preceeding year figures 

26. The Company has paid fixed manthly remuneration to the directors in accordance with 

the provisions of section 196, 187, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act 2013 and the Companies (Apooiniment snd Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} 

Rules, 2014 read with the Schedule Vf of the Companies Act 2013. . 

27. Gantingent Liability not provided for, 

fa) In Respect of Bank Guarantees igsued by the bans on behalf of the company Rs 

410.96 Lakhs 

ib} Far claims/shortage not ascertained nor settled durng the year. Claims ladged by 

customers but not settied by the company Rs 2.47 Lakhs 

ic) Approximate Liability an account of major cases filed agsinst ihe company in vanous 

courts aggregating ta Rs 64.79 Lakhs 

38. Sundry Debtors include freight recoivable agains! GRs issued during the year, 

99. Tax Deducted at Source (4.7. 2024-2025) is not final as more TOS Certificates night be 

received by the company in future, 

0. There is nothing to be disclosed under ind AS 108 — Operating Segments since there is 

no business segment or geographical ‘segment which is a reportable segment based on 

the definitions contained ia the accounting standard. 

“hr eR 
‘a nes St 
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a4, 

Profit & Loss: 

Deferred Tax has been created as per Ind AS 12 issued by Institute of Chartered 
Aocountants of India. 

Fs in fakins 

Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax 
Assete!(Liabilityy Credit(Charge) Asset Lianlity) 
as at 01.04.2023 for the year as at 31.03.2024 

Oneaenount of (57.58) aed? (70.41) 
difference belween 

book & tax dep. 

(On account of provision 1.01 7,00 8.00 
ai gratuity 

Total 33,42 hai? oF .60 

The dehit and credit balances standing in the name of parties are subject to confirmation 

from them, 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the current assets, loans & advances are fully 
realizable at the value stated, if realized: in-the ordinary course of business, The 
provisions for all knewn liabilities ere adequate in the opinion of board 

Employee Benefits 
A. Defined Contribution Plan 
The Company has contributed to Employee Provident Fund, under defined contribution 
plans. The provident fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. 

During the year the company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of 

| March31, 2024 (In Rs) | March 34, 2023 (In Rs} | 
Employers Contribution ia |G Lakhs. 89.74 Lakhs | 
Provident Fund 

8, Defined Benefit Plan 
The present value obligation in respect of gratuity is determined based on actuarial 

valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service 

as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entillement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation, The summarized positions of various defined 

benefits are @5 under:- 

4. Actuarial Assumptions 

i 

Gratuity (unfunded) |) Gratuity (unfunded) March 

L_ March34, 2024 | 31, 2023 
| Discount Rate (per annum) | 7.30% 7.30% __| 

(Salary Escalation €0% OM 
| Mortality Rates 100 % of India Assured 700% of India Assured 
_ Lives 2012-14 Ultimate Lives 2072-14 Ullimate | 

fs all ae ss : ‘1 

Sa 



35. 

Note: 
Discount rate should be based or the yield to maturity on high quality corporate bords 
having term similar to that of the liability. 

2. Present Value of Obligation 

| Gratuity (unfunded) March 
31, 2024 in Rs 

Net defined benefit liability 

Gratuity (unfunded) March 

31, 2023 in Rs 

389. 44 Lakhs 361.59 Lakhs 

3. Expenses recognized in statement of profit & loss 
Gratuity (unfunded) March | 
31, 2024 in Rs 

Gratuity (unfunded) March 
#1, 7023 in Rs 

Expense recognized in 
Profit & Loss 

42.65 lakhs | 38.87 lakhs 
| 

Shareholding of Promoters:- 

Details of shares held by promoters as on 31.03.2024 

% change during the |S. Promoter's Name | No.of shares. | % of total 
No. _ _ shares “year __| 

1 Mrs, Vanya Jain 95.37, 173 | 10.00 Ne 
2 _ Mr. Utkarsh Jain 72, 16,416 var [Ne 
3, NECC Securities Private 1.45,48,072 15,26 Ne 

Limited. —|__ —_—_—_— 
4 NEC Automobiles | 1,568,324 688 16.60 | No 

Private | 
Limited 7 

§ Suvi Developers Private | 30.99.6690 325 Neo 
Lirnited | 

Details of shares held by promoters as on 31.03.2023 

[s, | Promoter's Name No.of shares | %oftotal | % change during the year 
_No. | shares = . ; 
\4 Mrs. Vanya Jain 60,199,565 | 70,00 No 
2 | Mr. Utkarsh Jain | 37.98.1714 [7 SF Ko 
4, NECC Securities | 76,565,680 15.25 Na 

La _ Private Limited 
4 NECC Automobiles | 83,34,152' 16.60 No 

Private 
i" Linnited — ee _ 
a Suvi Developers | 16,31.400 3.25 Mo 

Private Limited = 
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36. Ageing of Trade Payable (Creditors) 

As an 31.03.2024 

Badiculars | Amount of of Trade Payable Sutstanding
 from due- date of payment | 

| _ [ieee 
| 

| Lessthan4 | 1-2 pasion | 2-3 Year = | More than | Total | 

—— Years 
s¥ears— | | 

indie Undisputed | - + 
- | 

Dues - MSME 

Undisputed — 1368.47 AT : 3.50 i | 302.37 | 

| Dues - Others | an _ | 

| Disputed dues - | - * | F I- ‘eae 

mSME i 1 a —_ | 

Disputed dues - I oc - 
=| 

Others ee | | 
ee —S—————— 

As on 31.03.2023 

| Particulars ~ [Amount of Trade Payable a outstanding from due e date re of 3F payment | 

L {ABER 

| 

— Lessthan1 | 1-2 Year | 2-3 sear | Morethan | Total | 

| a 
Years = an —- ——— —— 

Undisputed Dues r =| 
z 

|< MSMIE | ee ee — be fos ee 

Undisputed Dues | 288. OB 7.04 _ 3.05 aqag~S~*é«*r*«C 2S | 

- Others as | — __ | | 

| | Disputed dues - i - =4 = - | = | 

MSME ___ th a a 

| Disputed dues - 
- = =| | - 

| Others = ee
e 

_| 

37, Ageing of Trade Receivable (Debtors) LAmount iin Rs Lakhs) 

As on 31.03.2024 

| Particulars _ [Amount of i Trade F Receivable o outstanding from n due da 1@ date te of payment ent = 

| Less than | & Months | 1-2 Years ; | 2-3 Years | More than | “Total 

| 8 Months _| tet Year || 3 Years | | 

lGnaisputed 7141464 | 19000 | 9-18 jas jsea2 | 1,968.94 | 

Trade | | 
| receivables- 

considered 

| 42 geod _ NW ere ee 
t 

Undisputed | - iz a [= [- ES 

| Trade |" 

receivables- | 
| | | | | 

considered | a _ = ; | | | 

doubtful 
——_ ee 

| Disputed _ [= ee 8 ees Le ea _ q 



Trade | 
receivables- 

considered 
good | | | 
Disputed - - - 4 ££ | -- - 
Trade 

receivables 

considered 

clowatotfual 
As on 31.03.3023 

Particulars | Amount of Trade Receivable outstanding from due date of payment 

(RsiLacs) _ | 
Less than | 6Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than Total 

eee |. Months | tot Year | 3 Years | 
Undisputed | 10,951.98 | 118.93 | 23.20 7.20 436.271 47,535.20 
Trade | 

receivables 

considered | 

good | | 
‘Undisputed | - 2 = + - = 
Trade 
receivables | 
considered 
doubtiul 
Disputed - - - - - - 
‘Trade 

receivables 
considered 

_good 
| Disputed cr 4 . = = 
Trade 

| receivables 
considered 

| doubtful 

38. Title Deeds of immovable Property: All ttle deads of immovable properties are held in 

the name of the Company. 

39. Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment: During the financial year, the 

Company hes not re-valued any of tts Properly. Plant & Equipment 

40), Disclosure of loansfadvances given to Directors/KMP/Related parties: - 

Disclosuré wort loans and advances which are:- 

a. repayable on cemand or 

b. without specifying any terms or period of repayment are as 

follows: 
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Type of As an 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023 

_Borrower. — a 
Amount ofioan Percentage to Amount of loan | Percentage to 
or advance in the total loans of advance in the total loans 

the nature of and advances the nature of | and advances 
loan in the nature of loan in the nature of 

i _. outstanding loans outstanding loans 
Promoters - . = - 

_Olrectors : : : - 
_KMPs 17,52 : 17.86 - 
Related Parties | 

41. Gapital-Work In Progress: There is no capital work in progress for tangible or 

intangible assets. 

42. Benami Properties :No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the 

Campany for holding any Senami property under the Pranivition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1948. 

43. Borrowings from Banks/Fl on the basis of security of Current Assets: The 

Compeny confirms that Quarterly Returns or Statements of Current Assets filed by the 
Company with Banks/Fl, are in agreement with books of accounts. 

44, The company has not bean declared as willful defaulter by any bank of financial institution 

or any other lender. 

45, Transactions with Struck-off Companies ‘The company has not entered into any 

transactions with struck off companiesunder section 248 of the Companies Act 2073 or 
Section 560 of Companies Act 1956. 

46, Registration of Charges or Satisfaction |The company has following old charges far 

which satisfaction needs to file and the company will file the charge satisfaction at the 
farliest, 

_ Gharge ID Charge holder Name Amountin Rs Lakhs 
| 10019423 Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 11.90 
10197 IT Kotak Mahindra Bans Ltd 177313 
1ON4 28745 HDOFC BANK LIMITED 89,65 

4? Compliance with layers of the companies:- 

The company nas complied with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of 

the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number ef Layers} Rules 2047. 

48, Scheme or Arrangement :During the year, the company has not entered into any 
scheme or arrangement in terms of Section 230 ta 237 of the Companies Act 2073 
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50; 

51. 

Se, 

a4. 

Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium: Guring the year, the Company has 

not loaned or invested, borrowed funds or other funds with the understanding (written or 

atherease}, that the interrnediatory shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

entities or the intermediary shall provice security’guarantes for the benefit of entities 

identified by the Cormpany. 

Lise of Borrowed Funds ‘The Company has used tne borrowings. from banks and 

Financial Institutions for the specific purpase for which it was taken, 

In the opinion of the Board, all current essets have a value on realization in the erdinary 

raurse of business which is equal to the amount at which they are stated in financial 

statements 

Being a service company quantitative information clause are not applicable. 

Payment to Auditors Amt In Rs, 

Audit Fase Re § Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.6 Lekhe) 

Previous year figures have heen regrouped! reclassifiad wherever necessary, 
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